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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Ta the Members of ASHV FINANCE LIMITED- (formerly known as JAIN SO
LIMITED)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ASHV FINANCE LIM
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit

NS FINLEASE

JITED (“the Company”),
d Loss {including Other

a
Comprehenswe Income), the Statement of Changcs in Equity and the. Statement. of Cash Flows, for the year

ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and othe
(hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
financial statements give the information required by the- Companies Act, 2013 (“t
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting S
-section 133 of the Act read with the. Companies.(Indian Accounting Standards) Rule
AS”} and other accounting prineiples generally accepted in India, of the state of aifh
March 31, 2022, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and 3
ended on that date.

‘Basis for Opinion-

explanatory information

oiven to us, the aforesaid
e Act”} in the manner so

dards prescribed under
2015, as amended, (“Ind
hirs of the Company as at
ts cash flows for the year

We conducted our audit of the: financial s’tzit&ements in accordan&:e with the Standagds on Auditing specified

‘Audltor s Responsibilities for the Audlt of the Financial Statements’ section of ouf rg
of the Company in accirdance with the Code of Ethics: issued by the-Institute of 4
India- (ICAD) fogether with the independence requirements that are relevant to o
statements under the provisions-of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and wg
ethical responsibilifies in accordarce with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code ¢
the audit evidence we have.obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
the financial statements.

Key Audit Matier

-Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of mos
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed i 1}
the financial statements as a whole, and it forming our opinion thereon, and we ¢
opinion on these matters, We have determined the maitérs described below to be th
communicated in our report.

Fe firther described in the
port. We are independént
Chartered Accountants of
i audit of the financial
- have fulfilled our other
of Ethics. We believe that
for ouraudit opinion on

significance in our andit
¢ confext of our audit of
io not provide a separate
€ key audit matters to- be




Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and w¢

of assurance conclusion thereon.

do not express -any form'

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is fo read Jhe other information and,

in doing so, _conSider- whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 1|
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be m|

If, based on the work we bave performed, we conclude that there isa material o

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to.report in this reg

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Conipany’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sectio
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair vie
financial performance, total comprehensive income; changes in equity and cash.
accordance with the 1nd AS and other accounting. prmmples generally accepted in.
also includes maintenance of adequate: accounting records in accordance with the
safeguarding the assets -of the Company and for preventing and detecting frau

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgment:
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maititenance of adequate i
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the ac
‘to the preparation and preseniation of the financial statements that give a trae and fai

‘material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

In preparing the financial statéments, management is. responsible for asscssing '

he financial statements or
hterially misstated,

isstatement of this other
rard,

v 134(5) of the Act with
of the financial posmon,=
ows. of the Company. in
dia. This responsibility
rovisions of the Act for
and other irregularities;
and estimates that are
iternal financial controls,
ounting records, relevant
ir view and are free from

e Compa‘ny 5 ability to

continue asa going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going corjcern and using the going

coneem basis of accounting unless management either inténds to liquidate the Comp:
or has no realistic alternative but 10.do so.

‘The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial repo

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of ‘the Financiaf Statements

Our objectives are to .obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state
from material misstatement;, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor

ny-01 to cease n_peratlons .

riing process.

ents asa whole are free
report that includes our

opinion, Reasonable assurarice is a high level of assurarice, but is not-a guarantee: that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic-decisions of users taken on the-basis of these fi

As part.of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

or error, design‘and perform audit procedures responisive to those risks; and ol

b
sufficient. and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of }I

misstatement resulting: from fraud is higher than for one resulting from- err

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override-of]

Obtain an. understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit|i
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement. of the fnancial stateme

meial statements:

d maintain proféssional

tits, whether due to fraud
ain-audit evidence that is
ot detecting a material
r, as frand may. involve
internal control.

in order to desrgn audit
of the Act, we are also.

mternal financial controls




d)

e)

g)

h)

i,

.

In our opinion, the aforesaid {inancial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section

133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

On_the. basis ‘of .the written representations received from the directors as
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directots i disqualif
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respectto the adéquacy of the internal financial controls over financial
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to cur separate Reps
report expresses an unmoedified opinion on the adequacy and operat
Company’s internal financial controls-over financial reporting. '

With respect to the other matters to be inchuded in the Auditor’s Reporf
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:-

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exp
remuneration paid/ provided by the Company to its directors during the'y
the provisions of section 197 of the Act..

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repart in

on March 31, 2022-and
jed as on March 31, 2022

reporting of the Company
ort.in “Annexure B”. Qur
ng effectiveness . of the

in accordance with the

anations given to us, the
bar 15 in accordance with

pccordance with Rule 11

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opitjion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigation which' would impact its financial position

as at 31 March 2022,

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term' contracts including derivative-contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses.

Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2082

(a): The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowle

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

)

ipe and belief, no funds.

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or lgatied or
invested (either from borrowed funds:or share premium or any other $ources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign gntity (“Intermediaries”),

with the undérstandlng, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,

whether, directly or indirectly lend or.invest in other persons or entitied ideritified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Benefs iGiaries”) ‘of provide any
glarantee; security or the like on behalf of the Ukimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowleflge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been feceived by the- Company
from any person or entity, inclading foreign entity (“Fiinding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in wrltmg or otherwise, that the Company shdll, whether, directly or
indirectly, leud or invest.in other persons or entities identified in any thanner whatsogver by of
on behalf of the Fundmg Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ukimate Beneficiarjes; '

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonablp and appropridte in the
circumstances, nothing has ‘come to our notice that has caused|us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (f) and (ii) of Rule 11(g), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.




Annexure - A to the Independent Avditors® Report
{Referred to under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory. Requirements” section of gur report to the members
of Ashv Finance Limited of even date)

I

il

iii

In respect of the- Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible A

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full pa

®)

©

(d)

(e)

(a)

(B

(B)

‘material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

"The Company has not revaluéd any of its Property, Plant and Eq

‘benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act

During the year, the Company had existing sanctioned workip

and March 31, 2022.

quantitative details and sifuation of Property, Plant and Equig]
details of right-of-use assets. '

The Company has maintained proper records showing full parti
assets.

The property, plant and-equiprncnt:were.physically verified dur|

L ss5ets:

ticulars, including
ment and relevant

tulars of intangible

jug the year by the

management in accordance with a regular programme of verific

tion which, in our

opinion, provides for physical verification of aH the property, plant and equipment
at reasonable intervals. According to-the information and explanagion given to us, no

According to the information and explanations given to us and

po the basis of our-

examination of the records.-of the Company; the Company doés ot have ownership

of any immovable property.

Right of Use assets). or intangible assets during the year. Accq
3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations givei to us, no pro

iipment (including
rdingly, paragraph

Feedings have been

initiated, or were pending, during the year against the Compagy for holding any

and rules made thereunder.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting u
of the Order is not applicable.

excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate; fromi various banks:on |

. 1988 (45 0f1988)

nder clause 3(ii)(a)

g capital limits in
he basis of security

of its ¢urrent assets: The quarterly stateménts.filed by the Compaliy with such banks

were in agreement with unaudited books of account of the
respective quarters ended . Juie 30, 2021, September 30, 2021, 1

The Company has granted secured and unsecured loans to other]
year, in respect of which:

fompany as at the
pecember 31, 2021

parties, during the




viii

ix

(@),

()

(a)

®)

(©)

@

)]

)

(&)

According to. the information and explanations given to us-and
examination of the récords, the Company has generally been e
undisputed statutory dues, including Goods-and Services tax; in

pn the basis of our
gular in depositing
tome tax and other

material statutory dues applicable 16 it with the appropriate authgtities.According to

the information and explanations given te us, no undisputed a
Tespect of income tax; goods and service tax, cess and other material statitory dues

were in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for & period of more than s
date they became payable.

According to information and explanations given to us, there are

mounts payable in

x months ffom the

no.dues of income

tax, sales-fax, wealth tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, ekcise duty and cess

which have not been deposited on account of any.dispute.

According fo the information and explanations given to us, no fra
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax ass
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which was not recorded in thi
Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable..

Based on our audit procedures and as per thie information and ex
the management, we are of the opinion that the Company h
repayment of loans to banks.

According to the information and explanations given to us and _
-audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declafed wiiful defaulter

sactions have been
2ssments under the
E books of account.

(planations given by
s not defaulied in

pn the basis of our

by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to iss; the

Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans

:the purposes for which they were obtained.

Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
term purposes by the:Company.

According to the-infbrmation and explanations. given to us and
procedures performed by us, the Company does not. have any,
ventures-or-associate companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(e)
applicable.

Accordiiig to-the information an'd"explanatio'ns' given to-us and
procedures performed by us, the Company does nothave any

during the year for

According 16 the information and explanations given to us, Ild the' procedutes
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financi

statements of the
been used forfong-

based on the audit
subsidiaries, joint
of the Order is not

based on the audit
subsidiaries, joint

ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3(1x)(f) of the Order is not

applicable:

-According to the infermation and explanations given to u$ and

based on the audit

procedures performed by us, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial

public offer or further public offer (iticluding debt instruments) ditrinig the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(x){2) of the Order is not applicable.




@
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Direction 2016) dos
Investment Companies (CICs).

xvii

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Grioup (as defined the

s not have an Core

In our opinion and according to the information and explanatiohs given to us, the

Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit

and the immediately preceding financial year.
xviit There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the
paragraph 3(xviii) of the Orider is not applicable.

On the ‘basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dat
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other informa
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board

xix

year. Accordingly,

of realisation of
ion accompanying
of Directors: and

Management plans and based on our examination of the evidepce supporting the

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
midterial uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indics
is. ot ‘capable of meeting its liabilities. existing at the date of b3

to believe that any
ting that Company
lance sheet as and

when they fall due within a périod of one year from the balanfe shest date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viabilify of the Company.

‘We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to th
report and we néither give any guarantee nor any assufance that 4
due. within a period of one’ year from’ the balance sheet date; wil
the Company as and 'when they fall due:-

According to' the infortation and explanations given to us af
procedures performed by us, the Company was not required t6 sp

(@)

e date of the audit
11 liabilities falling
get discharged by

hd. based on andit
end any-amourt in

terms of Section 135 of the Act during the year. Accordingly; secpnd proviso to'sub-

section (5) of section 135 of the said Act and paragraph 3(xx)a)
applicable.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us aj

of the Order is not

hd based on audit

procedures performed by us; the Company-did not have any ongomg project in terms

of Section 135 of the Act.during the year. Accordingly, provisior
of section 135 of the said Act and paragraph 3(o)(b) of the Orde

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accouniants
TCAI Firm Reg. No.101048W

Janak Mehta

Partmer

Meémbership No. 116976
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 5, 2022

ICAT UDIN:

of sub-section (6)
r is not applicable.

11



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls aver Financial Reporting

A company's hiternal Financial Control over Financial Reporting is a process

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability. of Finaricial Reporting and the: pr

designed to' provide:
eparation of Financial

Statements - for external purposes in. accordance with generally accepted Accpunting Principles. A
company's Iniernal Financial Control over Financial Reporting inchudes those policies-and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately

and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasgnsble assurarce that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit préparation of Financial Statemenyts in accorddnce with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of tlie company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the comppany; and (3) provide
yeasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the.company's-assets that could havée a material effect on the Financiagl Statements,

Inherent Limitaticns of Internal Financial Controls. Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations. of internal financial controls cver financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material miss{atements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intefnal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial conirel over
financial reporting may become inadequate becanse of changes in conditions, gr that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respécts, an adequate internal finahcial controls systein
over financial teporting and such intetnal financial controls over financial repofting were operating’
effectively-as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial réportinlg criteria established
by-the Company considéring the essential components of internal control stated in {fle. Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Inistitute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For BATLIBOL & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Reg. No:101048W

Janak Mehta
_Partner

Membership No. 116976
"Place: Mumbai

Date: May 3, 2022

1CAT UDIN :

13




Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts in  lakhs unless otherwise stated)
Asat As at
Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
1 Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 5 4,472 55 2,357.18
(b) Bank balances other than (a) above 6 7,344 48 2,502.18
(c) Loans 7 70,516.00 49,903.81
(d) Investment 8 102.27 -
(¢) Other financial assets 9 2,974.96 1,896.01
Total financial assets 85,410.26 56,659.18
2 Non-financial assets
(a) Current tax assets (net) 1,065.90 692.31
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 10 1,199.42 869.18
(c) Property, plant and equipment 11A 209.59 217.72
(d) Right-of-use asset 11B 34444 311.83
(e) Goodwill 2,009.10 2,009.10
(f) Other Intangible assets 12 39.61 77.94
(g) Other non-financial assets 13 294.67 203.04
Total non-financial assets 5,162.73 4,381.12
Total assets 90,572.99 61,040.30
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financial liabilities
(a) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 21.14 -
(ii) total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 14 21.00 91.12
(b) Debt securities 15 19,417.00 10,156.24
(¢) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16 42,774.97 23,999.13
(d) Other financial liabilities 17 2,433.65 1,664.03
Total financial liabilities 64,667.76 35,910.52
2 Non-financial liabilities
(a) Provisions 18 119.19 71.91
(b) Other non-financial liabilities 19 283.37 171.04
Total non-financial liabilities 402.56 242.95
3 Equity
(a) Equity share capital 20 3,361.53 3,361.53
(b) Preference share capital 20 84777 847.77
(c) Other equity 21 21,293.37 20,677.53
Total equity 25,502.67 24,886.83
Total liabilities and equity 90,572.99 61,040.30
Summary of significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Batliboi and Purohit For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Firm registration number: 101048W
Janak Mehta Vineet Chandra Rai Nikesh Kumar Sinha
Partner Chairman Managing DiI:ctor
Membership No: 116976 DIN: 00606290 DIN: 08268336
Kiran Agarwal Todi Monika Variava
Chief Financial Officer Company Sedretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 5 May 2022 Date: 5 May 2022




Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Notes | 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1 Revenue from operations
(i) Interestincome 2 12,000.16 8,632.59
(ii) Net gain on fair value changes 23 29.25 -
(iii) Other operating revenue 24 770.26 44722
Total revenue from operations 12,799.67 9,079.81
2 Other income 25 52.72 92.46
3 Total income (1+2) 12,852.39 9,172.27
4 Expenses
(i) Finance costs 26 5,840.32 3,454.06
(ii) Fee and commission expense 72.66 64.34
(iii) Impairment on financial instruments 27 1,324.29 1,790.68
(iv) Employee benefits expense 28 3,655.36 2,558.50
(v) Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 27249 157.79
(vi) Other expenses 29 1,455.97 881.44
Total expenses 12,621.09 8,906.81
5 Profit before tax (3-4) 231.30 265.46
6 Tax expense:
(a) Current tax expense 35 21.74 75.49
(b) Deferred tax benefit 35 (330.24) (579.94)
(c) Taxes of earlier years 35 (6.97) (26.44)
(315.47) (530.89)
7 Profit for the year (5-6) 546.77 796.35
8 Other comprehensive income, net of tax
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement expense on defined benefit plans 33 8.31 2.34
Income tax relating to remeasurement gains on defined benefit plans 33 = -
Other comprehensive income 8.31 2.34
9 Total comprehensive income for the year (7+8) 538.46 794.01
10 Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 31
Basic (in ) 1.63 237
Diluted (in %) 1.30 1.89
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Batliboi and Purohit
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101048W

Janak Mehta
Partner
Membership No: 116976

Place: Mumbai
Date: 5 May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain §

Vineet Chandra Rai
Chairman
DIN: 00606290

Kiran Agarwal Todi
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: 5 May 2022

Nikesh K]
Managing

umar Sinha
Director

DIN: 08268336

Monika V
Company|

fariava

Secretary

bons Finlease Limited)



Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in % lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 231.30 265.46
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 27249 157.79
Impairment on financial assets 97.37 1,790.68
Share-based payments to employees 77.38 64.30
Interest expense on lease liability 2445 22,63
Gain on derecognition of assigned receivables 380.92 116.08
Net gain on fair value changes 29.25 -
Finance cost 5,815.87 3,431.43
Effective interest rate adjustment for financial instruments (148.75) (87.11)
Interest income from fixed deposits (386.88) (308.18)
Interest income on income tax refund (49.31) (88.80)
Provisions from employee benefits 38.97 30.05
Operating profit before working capital changes 6,383.06 5,394.33
Adjustment for change in working capital:
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (48.98) 75.27
Decrease in other liabilities 693.70 (193.35)
Increase in loans and advances (20,738.81) (9,118.82)
Increase in other assets (1,551.50) (1,554.85)
Cash used in operating activities (15,262.53) (5,397.42)
Income tax paid, net of refunds (352.99) 1,036.63
Net cash used in operating activities (A) (15,615.52) (4,360.79)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (76.42) (127.42)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.16 0.20
Payment of purchase consideration on acquisition - (6,305.16)
Purchase of investment measured at FVTPL 32,944.00 -
Proceeds from sale of investment measured at FVTPL (32,870.98) -
Movement in margin money deposits (net) (4,455.42) (1,406.26)
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (B) (4,458.66) (7,838.64)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds of loan availed 56,903.25 24,568.20
Repayment of debt securities/borrowings (29,101.27) (16,333.87)
Repayment of Finance costs (5.432.50) (3.431.43)
Repayment of lease liabilities (179.93) (58.27)
Cash generated from financing activities (C) 22,189.55 4,744.63
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (A+B+C) 2,115.37 (7,454.80)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 5) 2,357.18 9,811.98
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 5) 4,472.55 2,357.18
Note 1:
Cash and cash equivalents as per note 5 447255 2,357.18
4,472.55 2,357.18
The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7, 'Statenjent of Cash Flows'.

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

For Batliboi and Purohit
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 101048W

Janak Mehta
Partner
Membership No: 116976

Place: Mumbai
Date: 5 May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sol'Ts Finlease Limited)

Vineet Chandra Rai Nik¢sh Kumar Sinha
Chairman Manpging Director
DIN: 00606290 DIN{ 08268336

Kiran Agarwal Todi Monika Variava
Chief Financial Officer Comipany Secretary
Place: Mumbai

Date: 5 May 2022
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Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 I
(All amounts in * lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1 Background
Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited) (“the Company”) is a company incorporated under the provisions of the

a)

b

—

a)

b

—

Companies Act, 1956. Effective 7 January 1999, the Company is registered as a non-deposit taking, I
under the rules and regulations framed by the Reserve Bank of India (“the RBI”). The Companj
lending facilities to the small businesses primarily in MSME segment. The Company is part of a S
NBFC group. The Company has changed its name to Ashv Finance Limited and has received g
October 2020.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements (“the Financial Statements”) have been prepared in accordance with the
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 201
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and other

Bank of India ("RBI’). The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies for the periods pr

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 were authorized and approved for issue |

Historical cost convention
These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis following accrual system of

March 2021

Non-Banking Financial Company (“INBFC")
i is engaged in the business of providing
ystemically Important Non-Deposit taking
fresh certificate of incorporation dated 8

Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as
b (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian
applicable guidelines issued by the Reserve
psented in these financial statements.

vy the Board of Directors on 5 May 2022.

accounting and are in accordance with the

Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 (as amended),

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable regulatory norms / guideli
been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities whi
in relevant accounting policies.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measuf
policies have been applied consistently for all the periods presented in the financial statements.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principlg
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of con
statements and the results of operations during the reporting periods. Although these estimates are

nes. Further, the financial statements have
th are measured at fair values as explained

tement bases summarised as below. These

's requires management to make estimates
lingent liabilities at the date of the financial
based upon management’s best knowledge

of current events and actions, actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates yised by the management in the preparation

of these financial statements include estimates of the economic useful lives of property, plant and ec
share based payments, deferred tax, accrual for employee benefits and impairment of loans under]
between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are know]
estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods.

Significant management judgements

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is b
the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.

juipment, useful lives of right of use assets,
the expected credit loss model. Difference
h/materialized. Any revision to accounting

hsed on an assessment of the probability of

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of

several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of thg
Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful live
reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate t
may change the utility of assets.

Provisions - At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and
requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual fy
judgement.

assets.
s of depreciable/amortisable assets at each
b technical and economic obsolescence that

legal aspects, the Company assesses the
ture outcome may be different from this
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b) Use of estimates (cont'd)

d)

e)

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Significant estimates
Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of

rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in th
the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of

underlying assumptions such as standard
ese assumptions may significantly impact

financial instruments (where active market

quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the
instrument. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. In case

of non-availability of market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 hierarchy is used for fair valuation.

Income taxes - Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes,

including amount expected to be paid /

recovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect of expected future profitability to assess defI'md tax asset.

Expected credit loss ("‘ECL’) - The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial asse
of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behavic
and resulting losses). The Company makes significant judgements with regard to the following whil
ECL:

* Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;
* Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of proc
* Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL; and

measured at amortised cost requires use
ur (e.g. likelihood of customers defaulting
e assessing expected credit loss to estimate

uct/market and the associated ECL;

* Estimating the probability of default and loss given default (estimates of recoverable amounts in cae of default)

Income recognition

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable.

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carr

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss, is recogniz
terms of the respective contract.

Dividend income

Income from dividend on shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual funds shall be taken into
right to receive payment is established.

nterest rate (EIR) i.e. the rate that exactly
ying amount of the financial assets.

+d on accrual basis in accordance with the

account on accrual basis when Company’s

Provided that in case of final dividend, right to receive payment shall be considered as established ¢nly upon approval of the dividend by the

shareholders in Annual General Meeting.

Other services

Fees/other charges on loan assets, other than those considered an adjustment to EIR, are accoy
amounts will be collected from the customers.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cots consists of interest and other cost that the Company incurred in connection with the

are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as per the effective interest rate method.

Earnings per share

nted for only when it is certain that the

borrowing of funds. Such borrowing costs

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting

attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss (interest and oth

er associated finance cost) for the period

attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all

dilutive potential equity shares.
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f)

—_—

B

h)

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Intangible assets
Recognition and initial measurement

March 2021

Intangible assets mainly comprise of computer software which is initially measured at acquisitfon cost thereof. Such assets are recognized

where it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow to thj
combination are recognized at fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent measurement (amortisation method, useful lives and residual value)
All intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over the estima

Company. Software acquired in a business

useful lives and a possible impairment is

assessed if there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Residual values gnd useful lives for all intangible assets are

reviewed at each reporting date. Changes, if any, are accounted for as changes in accounting es
intangible assets to be 3 years.

Intangible assets under development

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalisation under intangible assets is carried as ‘Iry
are ready for their intended use.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected|
from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal p
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Recognition and injtial measurement
PPE other than land are initially recognized at acquisition cost or construction cost, including

assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner|

imates. Management estimates useful life of

tangible assets under development’ tll they

from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising
roceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

aly costs directly attributable to bringing the

intended by the Company’s management.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that

future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company beyond one year.
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, useful lives, residual value and impairment)

Maintenance or servicing costs of PPE are

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method at the rates estimated by the Management which coincides with the rates specified in

Schedule II of the Act. The table below summarises useful lives of various category of PPE:

Asset Category Estimated useful life
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipments 5
Computer & peripherals 3

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financLl year.
PPE other than land are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be

recoverable.

De-recognition

An item of PPE and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or wh¢n no future economic benefits are expected

from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of an item of PPE is determine;

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lo:

Capital work-in-progress

as the difference between the net disposal

The cost of PPE under construction at the reporting date is disclosed as ‘Capital work-in-progress’. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset t¢ its working condition for the intended use.

Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid for

are outstanding at the balance sheet date are classified under ‘Capital Advances'.

Leases

the acquisition/ construction of PPE which

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with
lease, where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option.

periods covered by an option to extend the
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Significant accounting policies (Contd.)

h) Leases (Contd.)

i)

Where the Company is lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company net inve
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investm

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to

transfer from the Company to the lessee.
tment in the leases. Finance lease income
t outstanding in respect of the lease.

ownership of the asset are classified as

operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are recognized as income on a straight-line basi$ over the lease term.

Where the Company is lessee

The Company’s leased assets consist of leases for building. The Company assesses whether a contrac
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an iden|
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset,

a) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
b) the Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of
¢) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

contains lease, at inception of a contract.
ified asset for a period in exchange for
the Company assesses whether:

the lease and

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement

date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentiy
incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciatio

initial measurement of the lease Liability
res received, plus any initial direct costs
n, accumulated impairment losses, if any

and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right- of-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line

basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are

tested for impairment whenever there is

any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recogniged in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not pai
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be 1
readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate, For leases with reasonably similaj
the incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of leases as a whole. The lease payments sha
payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reas
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an optio:
is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability

1 at the commencement date of the lease.
padily determined. If that rate cannot be
- characteristics, the Company may adopt
1l include fixed payments, variable lease
bnably certain to exercise that option and
 to terminate the lease. The lease liability
, reducing the carrying amount to reflect

the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-

substance fixed lease payments.

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to t]
amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurg
recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of inl
made. Lease liability payments are classified as cash used in financing activities in the consolidated st4

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financia
entity.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to th
instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transactions costs, except for those d
which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial lij

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

he right-of-use asset. Where the carrying
ment of the lease liability, the Company

erest and reduced for the lease payments
itement of cash flows

liability or equity instrument of another

e contractual provisions of the financial
arried at fair value through profit or loss
hbilities is described below.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categori¢s upon initial recognition:

a) Amortised cost

b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

c) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL or equity instruments at FVOCI are subject to review
date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financi
determine impairment are applied for each category of financial assets, which are described below.

for impairment at least at each reporting
hl assets is impaired. Different criteria to
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3 Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
i) Financial instruments (cont'd)
Amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) if both of the foll
a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in d

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sol
principal amount outstanding.

The Company’s loans and advances, security deposits, staff loans, cash and cash equivalents, trade
category of financial instruments.
A loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised on financial assets carried at amortised co

Modification of cash flows
When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified and
result in derecognition of that financial asset, the Company recalculates the gross carrying amg
modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset shall

renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset's origi
incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortised over the remy

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that are either do not meet the criteria for

instruments held for trading or that meet certain conditions and are designated at FVTPL upon

1 March 2021

owing conditions are met:
T

der to collect contractual cash flows; and

%y payments of principal and interest on the

and most other receivables fall into this

oL,

the renegotiation or modification does not
punt of the financial asset and recognises a
be recalculated as the present value of the
hal effective interest rate. Any costs or fees
hining term of the modified financial asset.

amortised cost classification or are equity
initial recognition. All derivative financial

instruments also fall into this category, except for those designated and effective as hedging i
requirements may apply. Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses
financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market transactions or
market exists.

truments, for which the hedge accounting
ognized in profit or loss. The fair values of
ng a valuation technique where no active

Financial assets at FVOCI
FVOCI financial assets comprise of equity instruments measured at fair value. Gains and losses are
and reported within the FVOCI reserve within equity, except for dividend income, which is recogniz

recognized in other comprehensive income
ed in profit or loss.

De-recognition of financial assets

De-recognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions
The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and con+ﬁ0n5 have been renegotiated to the extent
that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain orlloss, to the extent that an impairment loss
has not already been recorded.

De-recognition of financial assets other than due fo substantial modification
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar f
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred

nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the

nancial assets) is derecognised when the
the contractual cash flows in a transaction
br in which the Company neither transfers
financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount (m
the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is reco|
Accordingly, gain on sale or derecognition of assigned portfolio are recorded upfront in the staten
Also, the Company recognises servicing income as a percentage of interest spread over tenure of loan
service the transferred financial asset.

pasured at the date of derecognition) and
pnised in the statement of profit and loss.
ent of profit and loss as per Ind AS 109.
in cases where it retains the obligation to

As per the guidelines of RBI, the Company is required to retain certain portion of the loan assig
Retention Requirement ("MRR"). Therefore, it continue to recognise the portion retained by it as MRR.

hed to parties in its books as Minimum

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest methol
trading or designated at FVTPL, that are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recogni

H, except for financial labilities held for
zed in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelle
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability ar
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

fd or expires. When an existing financial
of an existing liability are substantially
d the recognition of a new liability. The

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The derivative financial instruments are accounted for at FVTPL. The Company does not apply hedge dccounting,.
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j)

k)

)

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets

Loans

The Company follows a “three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since ifitial recognition as summarised below:

i) Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the
reporting date.
ii) Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recogniti¢n but that do not have objective evidence
of impairment.

iii) Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetim¢ ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets.
ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default, defined|as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its firjancial obligation, either over the next 12
months (12 months PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation. Please refer ndte 37 for further explanation.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - LGD represents the Company’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of
counterparty, type and preference of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support. Pleas¢ refer note 37 for further explanation.

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAD is based on the amount of outstanding exposure as on the ass¢ssment date on which ECL is computed
including amount guaranteed by way of letter.of credit. Please refer note 37 for further explanation.

Forward-looking economic information is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. The assumptions underlying
the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Other financial assets
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assits has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over|the expected life of the financial asset. To
make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as|at the balance sheet date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasongble and supportable information, that is
available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes
that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the|financial asset is determined to have low
credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Write-offs
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other shorf-term, highly liquid investments (original
maturity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which arg subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

Taxation
Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax. It is r¢cognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,
except when it relates to an item that is recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in which case, tax is also recognised in OCI or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax raté¢s enacted or substantively enacted and as
applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and ligbilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable income.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to apply to their respective period of
realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relafe to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority.
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset i$ recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that T is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized.
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3
1)

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Taxation (contd.)

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense ir
items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relat
comprehensive income or equity, respectively.

Dividend Distribution Tax is recognized at the same time when the liability to pay dividend is recogni

m) Employee benefits

n)

o

_—

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits including salaries, profit sharing and bonuses payable within twelve m|

profit or loss, except where they relate to
bd deferred tax is also recognized in other

ized.

bnths after the end of the period in which

the employees render the related services and non-monetary benefits for current employees are estifnated and measured on an undiscounted

basis.

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution
Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
payable to the provident fund and national pension scheme. The Company recognises contributi
employee renders the related service. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the exten
future payments is available.

Defined benefit plan

plans as under:

no obligation, other than the contribution
on payable as an expenditure, when an
t that a cash refund or a reduction in the

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity which is being considered as defined benefit plarjs covering eligible employees. Under the

defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by referencs
salary and other defined parameters. The plan is unfunded.

¢ to the employee’s length of service, final

The Company’s obligation towards defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit cred
carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The liability recognised in the statement of fi

t method, with actuarial valuations being
cial position for defined benefit plans is

the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value ¢f plan assets. Management estimates the

DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from
included in Other Comprehensive Income.

Share based payments - Employee Stock Option Scheme (‘ESOP’)

measurements of the liability/asset are

The fair value of options granted under Employee Stock Option Plan is recognized as an employde benefits expense with a corresponding
increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options. The total expense is recognized
over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the

recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresporn

g adjustment to equity. Upon exercise of

entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the nor;—Eket vesting and service conditions. It

share options, the proceeds received are allocated to share capital up to the par value of the shares
share premium.

Operating segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the ¢
of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the

Business combination and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisiti
consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value.

issued with any excess being recorded as

Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM’)
pperating segments of the Company.

on is measured as the aggregate of the

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed if any are reco
this purpose, the liabilities assumed are representing present obligation and they are measured at

d at their acquisition date fair values. For
eir acquisition fair values irrespective of

the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a

business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for a
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at
measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amour|
and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Goodwill recognized on business combination are tested for impairment at least annually and when

ropriate classification and designation in
e acquisition date. Goodwill is initially
t recognised for non-controlling interests,

events occur or changes in circumstances

indicate that the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating unit to which it pertains is legs than the carrying value
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q) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a r
outflow of economic resources will be required from the Company and amounts can be estimated
may still be uncertain. Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle

l\llarch 2021

It of a past event, it is probable that an
liably. Timing or amount of the outflow
e present obligation, based on the most

reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated With the present obligation. Provisions are

discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
» Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of
» Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is consid
recognized or disclosure is made.

the Company; or

\r’ﬂ] be required to settle the obligation or a

ered improbable or remote, no liability is

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation (such as from

insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the re
Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when inflow of economic benefits is probable, the re

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting datﬁz.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an order]
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transact
takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants wd
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sy
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inpu
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are d
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
* Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

*» Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair val
observable

ated provision.
ted asset is disclosed.

ly transaction between market participants
on to sell the asset or transfer the liability

uld use when pricing the asset or liability,
a non-financial asset takes into account a
t use or by selling it to another market

fficient data are available to measure fair
ts.

ategorised within the fair value hierarchy,
hs a whole:

ue measurement is directly or indirectly

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value m¢asurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Comipany determines whether transfers have

occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Standards issued but not yet effective as on date

There are no new standard or amendments notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA") to
been applicable from 1 April 2022.

input that is significant to the fair value

the existing standards which would have
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5 Cash and cash equivalents

e)

8)

31 March 2022

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash on hand 0.51 0.38
Balances with banks in current accounts 2,272.04 2,356.80
Fixed deposits with banks with original maturity less than 3 months 2,200.00 -~
4,472.55 2,357.18
Other bank balances
) As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Fixed deposits with banks with original maturity more than 3 months, on lien against term lpans
and unutilized overdraft limit 7,090.90 244507
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits 253.58 57.11
7,344.48 2,502.18
Loans
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Term loans to customers, net of deferral 70,337.21 50,605.64
Loan to related party 727.94 42294
Interest accrued on loans to customers 1,900.35 1,227.36
Total 72,965.50 52,255.94
Less: Impairment on financial instruments (2,449.50) (2,352.13)
70,516.00 49,903.81
Notes:
The net carrying amount of loans is considered a reasonable approximation of their fair value.
Refer note 37 for ECL disclosures.
Loans balances as at 31 March 2021 amounting to  3,167.49 are acquired by way of Business Cqmbination (refer Note 48)
The reconciliation of loans is as below:
Secured 10,731.39 13,962.54
Unsecured 59,266.12 36,465.91
69,997.51 50,428.45
Add/(Less): Deferral of net income/expense on origination of loans 339.70 177.19
Loans to customers, net of deferral 70,337.21 50,605.64
Secured exposures are secured wholly or partly by hypothecation of book debts, charge on movble/immovable assets.
All loans are held in India. For breakup of industry wise loans, refer Note. 42.
There are no loans given to Promotors, Directors or key managerial personnel (KMPs). For loan|given to related party:
Type of borrower : Related party 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amount of loan outstanding 727.94 42294
percentage of total loans & advances 1.02% 0.83%
Investments
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Northern Arc Money Market Alpha Fund 102.27 -

102.27
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9 Other financial assets
Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Collateral security given to lenders 225.53 38540
Security deposits 121.46 103.23
Loans to employees 20.13 11.24
Receivable for services 3.89 23.94
Receivable from related parties 2,163.64 1,211.62
Other receivables 440.31 160.58
2,974.96 1,896.01
10 Deferred tax assets (net)
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deferred tax asset arising on account of:
Impairment loss allowances on loans 618.84 592.03
On carried forward losses 652.36 200.84
Disallowance u/s 43B and other provisions 153.19 63.15
On right-of-use asset 1.95 -
On property, plant and equipment 2091 13.16
1,447.25 869.18
Deferred tax liability arising on account of:
On gain on derecognition of assigned receivables 66.35 -
On adjustments for Effective interest rate accounting 181.48 -
247.83 -
1,199.42 869.18

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on the carried forward tax losses to the exten} that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised | Total unrecognised deferred tax assets
as at 31 March 2021: Nil (March 2021: ¥ 466.16)
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11 A. Property, plant and equipment ('PPE')

ii.

1

Computers Furniture and Office equipment Total PPE
fixtures
Gross block
Balance as at 31 March 2020 84.34 17550 28.11 287.95
Additions 53.6 ).2 239 56.19
Additions through business combination 4.87 26097 1.36 33.20
Disposals (0.33) - - (0.33)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 142.48 202.67 31.86 377.01
Additions 73.03 0.35 214 76.02
Disposals (1.07) ’ . (1.07)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 214.44 203.52 33.99 451.96
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 31 March 2020 40.26 48.01 21.00 109.27
Depreciation charge for the year 2424 19.66 6.28 50.18
Disposals (0.16) B - (0.16)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 64.34 67.67 27.28 159.29
Depreciation charge of the period 44.57 34.81 4.05 83.43
Disposals (0.35) - B (0.35)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 108.56 102.48 31.33 242.37
Net block
As at 31 March 2021 78.14 135.ﬁ 4.58 217.72
As at 31 March 2022 105.89 101. 2.66 209.59
Note:
. Contractual obligations
There are no contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
Capitalised borrowing cost
There is no borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: Nil).
Revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets.
There have been no revaluation during the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: Nil).
B. Right-of-use asset
Office premises Total

Gross block
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - -
Additions 360.39 360.39
Balance as at 31 March 2021 360.39 360.39
Additions 182.94 182.94
Balance as at 31 March 2022 543.33 543.33
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - -
Amortization charge of the year 48.56 48.56
Balance as at 31 March 2021 48.56 48.56
Amortization charge of the period 150.33 150.33
Balance as at 31 March 2022 198.89 150.33
Net block
As at 31 March 2021 311.83 311.83
As at 31 March 2022 344.44 311.83




Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in Z lakhs unless otherwise stated)

12 Other intangible assets

Computer Total
Gross block
Balance as at 31 March 2020 146.46 146.46
Additions 71.23 71.23
Additions through business combination 117 117
Disposals > -~
Balance as at 31 March 2021 218.86 218.86
Additions 0.40 0.40
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 219.25 219.25
Amortisation
Balance as at 31 March 2020 81.87 81.87
Charge for the year 59.05 59.05
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 140.92 140.92
Charge for the period 38.73 38.73
Adjustments - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 179.65 179.65
Net block
As at 31 March 2021 77.94 77.94
As at 31 March 2022 39.61 39.61
13 Other non-financial assets
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Prepaid expenses 175.52 138.41
Balance with government authorities 116.50 62.13
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 0.60 0.60
Other receivables 2.05 1.90

294.67 203.04
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14 Trade payables

a)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises, undisputed 21.14 -
(ii) total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Dues to related parties - -
Others, undisputed 21.00 91.12
42.14 91.12
Notes:
All trade payables are outstanding for the period less than 1 year, from respective due dates.
15 Debt securities
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured
- Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) 3,908.82 4,662.79
- Rated, Unlisted, Redeemable, NCDs 15,328.53 5,231.58
Interest accrued but not due on debt securities 179.65 261.87
19,417.00 10,156.24

Terms of repayment and security given are as below:

The Company had allotted 4,000 NCDs of face value of %1 lakh each fully paid-up at par on 16 November 2016. NCDs are secured by

way of hypothecation of specified book debts/loan receivables and carries coupon of 12.86%
redeemed during the year.

per annum. These NCDs have been

The Company had allotted 1,330 NCDs of face value of ¥1 lakh each fully paid-up at par on 10 Jyne 2016. NCDs are secured by way of
hypothecation of specified book debts/loan receivables and carries coupon of 12.86% per annum. The NCDs are redeemable at par in

two equal instalments. These NCDs have been redeemed during the year.

The Company has allotted 150 NCDs of face value of Z10 lakhs each fully paid-up at par on 29
hypothecation of specified book debts/loan receivables and carries coupon of 10.58% per
instalments ranging from %8.33 lakhs to ¥41.67 lakhs till August 2021. These NCDs have been rede

The Company has allotted 320 NCDs of face value of 310 lakhs each fully paid-up at par on 25

:ﬁ.;ust 2018. NCDs are secured by way of

um, which are repayable in periodic
emed during the year.

November 2020. NCDs are secured by

way of hypothecation of specified book debts/loan receivables and carries coupon of 12.40% per gnnum, which are redeemable at par in

one instalment on 25th November 2023.

The Company has allotted 2,000 NCDs of face value of Z1 lakh each fully paid-up at par on 1
hypothecation of specified book debts/loan receivables and carries coupon of 13.75% per
instalments ranging from 2133.32 lakhs to ¥133.52 lakhs till June 2022.

um, which are repayable in periodic

I;(q‘rch 2021. NCDs are secured by way of
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March 2022

The Company has allotted 2,500 Principal Protected Market-linked Debentures (PP MLDs) of fac
par on 23 June 2021. These instruments are secured by way of hypothecation of specified bod
coupon linked to the "Reference Index" (BSE) subject to a base monthly coupon rate of 13.79% p¢
reference index and ceiling coupon rate of 14.15% per annum in a rising scenario of the referen
together with effective coupon amount in one instalment on 14th October 2022.

The Company has allotted 2,000 Principal Protected Market-linked Debentures (PP MLDs) of fact
par on 29 June 2021. These instruments are secured by way of hypothecation of specified bod
coupon linked to the "Reference Index" (BSE) subject to a base monthly coupon rate of 14.41% pg
reference index and ceiling rate of 14.76% per annum in a rising scenario of the reference index
with effective coupon amount in one instalment on 30th September 2022.

The Company has allotted 200 NCDs of face value of 10 lakhs each fully paid-up at par on 13
hypothecation of specified book debts/loan receivables and carries coupon of 13.65% per
instalments of ¥80.00 lakhs till September 2023.

The Company has allotted 3,000 NCDs of face value of 1 lakh each fully paid-up at par on 12
way of hypothecation of specified book debts/loan receivables and carries coupon of 13.45% per 4
instalments of £500.00 lakhs till October 2024.

The Company has allotted 1,700 NCDs of face value of %1 lakh each fully paid-up at par on 21 Ded
of hypothecation of specified book debts/loan receivables and carries coupon of 13.30% per ar
instalments of 283.33 lakhs till December 2024.

The Company has allotted 37,000 NCDs of face value of 210 thousands each fully paid-up at
secured by way of hypothecation of specified book debts/loan receivables and carries coup
redeemable at par in one instalment on 23rd December 2024.

The Company has allotted 210 NCDs of face value of 210 lakhs each fully paid-up at par on 30
NCDs are secured by way of hypothecation of specified book debts/loan receivables and carri
are repayable in periodic instalments ranging from ¥58.33 lakhs to ¥350.00 lakhs till March 2025.

The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or finan|
the books of accounts.

The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific |
balance sheet date.

Repayment schedule of term loans

pe i

b value of ¥1 lakh each fully paid-up at
k debts/ loan receivables and carries
r annum in a declining scenario of the
e index, which are redeemable at par

b value of ¥1 lakh each fully paid-up at
k debts/ loan receivables and carries
r annum in a declining scenario of the
which are redeemable at par together

st 2021. NCDs are secured by way of
which are repayable in periodic

November 2021. NCDs are secured by
innum, which are repayable in periodic

lember 2021. NCDs are secured by way
inum, which are repayable in periodic

par on 23 December 2021. NCDs are
on of 12.30% per annum, which are

Izm:h 2022 (deemed date of allotment).

coupon of 12.75% per annum, which

rial institutions are in agreement with

purpose for which it was taken at the

Up to 1 year 5,993.51 6,339.85
2to 5 years 13,413.33 3,600.16
19,406.84 9,940.01
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Borrowings
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured
Term loans from banks 6,140.43 1,779.86
Term loans from financial institutions 36,039.30 22,114.07
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 595.24 105.20
42,774.97 23,999.13

17

18

19

Terms of repayment and security given are as below:

Loans from banks and financial institutions are secured by way of hypothecation of book debts
interest on these loans ranges from 6.85% to 14.10% per annum as on 31 March 2022 (For previo
of interest ranged from 9.95% to 14.10% per annum).

The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or finan
the books of accounts.

reated out of the loan amount. Rate of
s year ended 31 March 2021: The Rate

rial institutions are in agreement with

The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the

balance sheet date.

Repayment schedule of term loans

Up to 1 year 27,840.65 13,757.23
2to 5 years 14,562.40 10,323.64
42,403.05 24,080.87
Other financial liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash collateral from customers 193.79 163.36
Advance from customers 435.06 385.72
Lease liability 352.20 324.76
Dues to the assignees towards collections from assigned receivables 253.35 8225
Employee payables 337.15 266.51
Other payables 862.10 441.43
2,433.65 1,664.03
Provisions
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 119.19 71.91
119.19 71.91
Other non-financial liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income received in advance 129.38 70.81
Statutory liabilities 153.99 100.23
283.37 171.04
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20 A. Equity Share capital

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Authorised
(i) 7,34,00,000 (31 March 2021: 7,34,00,000) equity shares of Z 10 each 7,340.00 7,340.00
7,340.00 7,340.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
(i) 3,36,15,301 (31 March 2021: 3,36,15,301) equity shares of ¥ 10 each 3,361.53 3,361.53
3,361.53 3,361.53
20 B. Preference share capital
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Authorised
(ii) 60,00,000 (31 March 2021: 60,00,000) 0.001% Series C CCPS of % 10 each 600.00 600.00
(iii) 56,00,000 (31 March 2021: 56,00,000) 0.001% Series D CCPS of % 10 each 560.00 560.00
22,563.00 22,563.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
(ii) 58,49,966 (31 March 2021: 58,49,966) 0.001% Series C CCPS of T 10 each 585.00 585.00
(iii) 26,27,724 (31 March 2021: 26,27,724) 0.001% Series D CCPS of ¥ 10 each 262.77 262.77
847.77 847.77
a) The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is set out
below
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number Amount Number Amount
Reconciliation of share capital
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,36,15,301 3,361.5% 2,21,36,447 2,213.64
Add: Allotted during the year - - 1,14,78,854 1,147.89
Balance at the end of the year 3,36,15,301 3,361.58 3,36,15,301 3,361.53
Reconciliation of CCPS
0.001% CCPS - Series C of ¥ 10 each
Balance at the beginning of the year 58,49,966 585.00 58,49,966 585.00
Add : Issued during the year - - = =
Balance at the end of the year 58,49,966 585.00 58,49,966 585.00

0.001% CCPS - Series D of ¥ 10 each
Balance at the beginning of the year 26,27,724 262.47 26,27,724 262.77
Add : Issued during the year - - - -

Balance at the end of the year 26,27,724 262.7 26,27,724 262.77
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b) Rights and restriction attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one

vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, of the proceeds available for distribution to the hol

lers of equity shares, the assets of the

Company will be distributed first among the Investors in accordance with the terms of the Apreement, second to the Shareholders
(which would include the Promoters and Other Shareholders) and lastly pro-rata amongst all the Shareholders (including Investors) on

a fully diluted basis.

If the Liquidity Event Proceeds are insufficient to make payment in full to all holders of the CQPS in accordance with the liquidation

preference set forth in this Agreement, then such Liquidity Event Proceeds shall be distributed pr

¢) Terms and rights attached to preference shares

Terms and rights attached to Series C CCPS of ¥10 each

p-rata among the Investors.

The Company had allotted 58,49,996 non-cumulative CCPS of face value ¥10 each fully paid-up at a premium of ¥77.18 per Series C

CCPS on 6 May 2016. The Series C CCPS carry dividend of 0.001% per annum. In addition to

he fixed dividend, each CCPS shall be

entitled to participate along with the equity shares in any dividends declared by the Company or| the equity shares, as if such CCPS has
been converted into equity shares immediately prior to declaration of dividend by the Company and are entitled to voting rights on a

fully diluted basis.

In accordance with the terms of the Shareholders Agreement, 1 (one) Series C CCPS shall be aul
share of T10 each at the end of 8th year from the date of issuance or on occurrence of an initial pu

bmatically converted into 1(one) equity
blic offer. In the event of liquidation of

the Company before conversion of CCPS, the holders of CCPS will have priority over equity shares in the payment of dividend and

repayment of capital.

Terms and rights attached to Series D CCPS of ¥10 each
The Company has allotted 26,27,724 0.001% Series D CCPS of 310 each on rights basis, on 9 Ay
Series D CCPS of 10 each for every 4 equity shares (on fully diluted basis) of 10 each at a premiy
In addition to the fixed dividend, each CCPS shall be entitled to participate along with the equi
the Company on the equity shares, as if such CCPS has been converted into equity shares immes
by the Company and are entitled to voting rights on a fully diluted basis.

In accordance with the terms of the Shareholders Agreement, 1 (one) Series D CCPS shall be auts
share of ¥10 each at the end of 8th year from the date of issuance or on occurrence of an initial py

pril 2018, in the ratio of 1 (one) 0.001%
im of 377.18 per 0.001% Series D CCPS.

shares in any dividends declared by
iately prior to declaration of dividend

pmatically converted into 1(one) equity
blic offer. In the event of liquidation of

the Company before conversion of CCPS, the holders of CCPS will have priority over equity ffxares in the payment of dividend and

repayment of capital.
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d) The details of shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No. of shares Percent of No. of shares Percent of
shareholding shareholding
Equity shares
Intellectual Capital Advisory Services Private Limited 1,18,61,955 35.29% 1,18,61,955 35.29%
("Intellectual")
Aavishkaar Venture Management Services Private Limited 1,33,20,638 39.63% 1,33,20,638 39.63%
("AVMS")
ON Mauritius 47,84,689 14.2306 47,84,689 14.23%
0.001% Series C CCPS of ¥ 10 each
On Mauritius 17,20,578 29.41P% 17,20,578 2941%
DWM 20,64,694 35.29% 20,64,694 35.29%
TSTMF 10,32,347 17.650% 10,32,347 17.65%
TCTFSF 10,32,347 17.65% 10,32,347 17.65%
0.001% Series D CCPS of T 10 each
AVMS 11,47,052 43.69% 11,47,052 43.65%
TCTFSF 3,70,168 14.09% 3,70,168 14.09%
TSTMF 3,70,168 14.09% 3,70,168 14.09%
DWM 740,336 28.17% 7,40,336 28.17%

e) The Company has not allotted any bonus shares in the five years immediately preceding 31 h 2022. The Company has not bought
back equity shares during five years immediately preceding 31 March 2022, nor has it issued |any share for consideration other than
cash.

f) For details of equity shares reserved for issuance under the ESOP plan of the Company, refer note 34.

g) There are no changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors. There has been no restatpment of balance at the beginning of the
current reporting period. T

h) Disclosures pertaining to Promotor shareholding:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Promoter name Aavishkaar Venture Management
number of shares held 1,33,20,638 1,33,20,638
percentage of total shares 39.63% 39.63%

percentage change during the year - =

21 Other equity

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Statutory reserve u/s 45(IC) of the RBI Act, 1934 624.39 514.39
Securities premium 21,992.25 21,992.25
Share options outstanding account 23445 157.07
Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss (1,557.72) (1,986.18)
21,293.37 20,677.53

Nature and purpose of reserve
a) Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can Qe utilised only for limited purposes such

as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Share options outstanding account
The reserve is used to recognised the fair value of the options issued to the employees of the Company under its stock option plan.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts in  lakhs unless otherwise stated)
Interest Income
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest on loans 11,592.36 8,296.99
Interest on fixed deposits 386.88 308.18
Interest on others 20.92 27.42
12,000.16 8,632.59
Net gain on fair value changes
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit on sale of investments in mutual funds 29.25 -
29.25 -
Other operating revenue
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Gain on derecognition of assigned receivables 380.92 116.08
Bad debt recoveries 128.71 226.73
Other charges 260.63 104.41
770.26 447.22
Other income
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest on income tax refund 49.31 88.80
Profit on sale of Asset 0.04 3.66
Other miscellaneous income 3.37 -
52.72 92.46
Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest expense on debt securities 1,567.83 1,023.24
Interest expense on borrowings 4,245.01 2,347.37
Interest expense on lease liabilities 24.45 51.08
Other borrowing costs 3.03 32.37
5,840.32 3,454.06
Impairment on financial instruments
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Impairment on loans 97.37 787.59
Loan assets written off 1,226.92 1,003.09
1,324.29 1,790.68




Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in % lakhs unless otherwise stated)
28 Employee benefits expenses
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Salaries and wages 3,169.09 2,238.89
Contributions to provident and other funds 188.18 125.09
Share based compensation 77.38 64.30
Gratuity expenses 46.52 30.82
Staff welfare expenses 174.19 99.40
3,655.36 2,558.50
29 Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Rent 103.38 137.04
Electricity and water 16.06 12.68
Repairs and maintenance - others 6.15 274
Rates and taxes 231.33 157.37
Travelling and conveyance 120.54 50.29
Printing and stationery 8.06 6.53
Director sitting fees 15.60 17.85
Legal and professional fees 420.76 176.44
Remuneration to auditors 18.19 16.00
Donation - 9.60
Communication expenses 28.32 22.81
Technology expense 209.91 170.97
Office expenses 113.48 71.32
Advertisement expenses 95.62 21.55
Foreign exchange loss - 0.59
Miscellaneous 68.57 7.66
1,455.97 881.44
28(a) Payment to auditors (excluding taxes)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
- Audit fees (including Limited Review) 16.69 14.50
- Tax audit fees 1.50 1.50
- Other matters - -
- Out of pocket expenses - 4
18.19 16.00

28(b) Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the Comjpany. The Company is not required to
spend any amount as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the years ended 31 March 2092 and 31 March 2021.
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30

31

32

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Year ended

Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 83.43 50.18

Amortisation on right of use asset 150.33 48.56

Amortisation on intangible assets 38.73 59.05

27249 157.79

Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders 546.77 796.35

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 3,36,15,301 3,36,15,301

Add: Effect of potential shares for conversion of CCPS (nos) 84,77,690 84,77,690

Add: Effect of potential shares for conversion of ESOP (nos) 1,10,662 -

Weighted average number of shares used to compute diluted EPS (nos) 4,22,03,653 4,20,92,991

Earning per share :

Basic 1.63 237

Diluted 1.30 1.89

Nominal value - per equity share 10.00 10.00

Related party disclosures

a) Description of relationship

Individuals / Companies having significant influence Nature of relationship

Aavishkaar Venture Management Services Private Limited ("AVMS") Holding Company/Entity which
has significant influence on the
Company*

Arohan Financial Services Limited ("Arohan") Associate of AVMS

Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited (“Intellecap”) Subsidiary of AVMS

Aavishkaar Foundation Subsidiary of AVMS

Aavishkaar Investment Advisors (IFSC) Private Limited Subsidiary of AVMS

Aavishkaar Advisors Private Limited Subsidiary of AVMS

Indradhanush Capital Advisors Private Limited Subsidiary of Intellecap

N R Management Consultants India Private Limited (from on 5 March 2021) Subsidiary of AVMS

TribeTech Private Limited ("TribeTech") Subsidiary of AVMS

Intellectual Capital Advisory Services Private Limited ("Intellectual”) Entity which has significant
influence on the Company

Intellecap Inc. Subsidiary of Intellecap

Sankalp Consultancy Limited Subsidiary of Intellecap

Aavishkaar Venture Trustees Pvt Ltd ("AVTPL")
Impact Investors Council ("IIC")
Aavishkaar Capital Advisors LLP ("ACAL") - Upto 5th Sept 2021

Directors
Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai
Mr. Anurag Agarwal

Key Management Personnel
Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director
Ms. Kiran Agarwal Todi, Chief Financial Officer

*Note: AVMS is the Holding Company w.e.f. September 2019.

Entity under common control
Entity under common control
Subsidiary of AVMS
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b) The transactions with related parties during the year:

Nature of transaction Transactions with 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Company  Intellecap 11.98 1.63
Reimbursement of expenses incurred for the Company Intellecap 1.33 -
Professional services Intellecap - 5.00
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Company ~ Arohan 30.43 51.21
Reimbursement of expenses incurred for the Company Arohan 0.39 0.13
Purchase of Assets Arohan 0.01 -
Business purchase consideration paid Arohan - 6,225.52
Customer receipts collected on behalf of the Company Arohan 1,846.87 54594
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Company  TribeTech - 6.64
Purchase of assets TribeTech - 4.05
Reimbursement of expenses incurred for the Company TribeTech 0.27 0.25
Sourcing and servicing fees TribeTech . 44.47
First loss default guarantee invoked TribeTech 2,151.87 75.41
Loan given TribeTech 305.00 42294
Interest charged TribeTech 92.89 29.75
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Company ~ AVMS 8.69 6.54
Reimbursement of expenses incurred for the Company AVMS 0.22 -
Loan taken AVMS - 1,000.00
Loan repaid AVMS o 1,000.00
Interest paid AVMS - 29.46
Sitting fees Vineet Chandra Rai 2.30 210
Sitting fees Anurag Agarwal 4.65 4.15
Remuneration Nikesh Kumar Sinha 192.50 174.00
Remuneration Kiran Agarwal Todi 91.09 83.12
c) Balances with related parties :

Name of the party Nature of balances 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Intellecap Other (payable)/receivable (11.37) 1.49
Arohan Other (payable)/receivablg (8.25) 1,211.62
TribeTech Other receivable 2,274.51 29.75
TribeTech Loans given 727.94 42294
Note:

The managerial remuneration disclosed above does not include the provision for gratuity madle on the basis of actuarial valuation is

for the whole Company as a whole.
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33 Employee benefits
A Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contribution of statutory provident fund as per the Employees'
Provisions Act, 1952 and Employees State Insurance Scheme as per the Employ

'rovident Funds and Miscellaneous
s' State Insurance Act, 1948. The

contribution amounts have been disclosed under Note 28, Employee benefits expense.

Defined benefit plan

The Company provides for a gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The gratuity plan

provides a lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitatio
an amount equivalent to 15 days salary for each completed year of service upto a li
completion of 5 continuous years of service as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. This j

Description of risk exposures:

blan is unfunded

h or termination of employment, of
it of Z 20 lakhs. Vesting occurs on

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such Company is

exposed to various risks as follows:

a) Salary increases - Actual salary increases will increase the plan’s liability. Increase ih salary increase rate assumption in

future valuations will also increase the liability.

b) Investment risk - If plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch and actual invcﬁstment return on assets lower than

the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.
¢) Discount rate - Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the

plan’s liability.

d) Mortality and disability - Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation

can impact the liabilities.

e) Withdrawals - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal

rates at subsequent valuations can impact plan’s liability.

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognized in th'le Statement of Profit and Loss and

amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Present value of the obligation as at the end of the year 119.20 71.91
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year - -
Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 119.20 71.91
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Defined benefit obligation as at beginning of the year 7191 23.10
Service cost 42.39 29.30
Interest cost 413 1.52
Actuarial losses/ (gains)

- change in financial assumptions (2.45) (10.03)
- change in demographic assumptions - 6.15
- experience variance (i.e. actual experiences assumptions) 10.76 6.22
Transfer in due to business combination - 16.42
Benefits paid (7.55) (0.77)
Defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 119.20 71.91
Assumptions used in the actuarial valuation for gratuity and compensated absences|are as under:

Discount rate 5.75% 7.50%
Salary escalation 5.00% 5.00%
Attrition rate 10.00% 10.00%
Retirement age (years) 60 60
Mortality 100% of IALM  100% of IALM

2012-14 2012-14

Net gratuity cost for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 comprises of fr)llowing components:
Current service cost 42.39 29.30
Net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability 4.13 1.52
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 46.52 30.82
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33 Employee benefits (Contd.)

4 Other comprehensive income

Remeasurements on defined benefit obligations 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Change in financial assumptions - 6.15
Change in demographic assumptions (2.45) (10.03)
Experience variance (i.e. actual experience vs assumptions) 10.76 6.22
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in other comprehensive income 8.31 2.34

5 Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 8.88 3.51
After next 12 months 110.31 68.40

6 Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below

Assumption Change in assumption 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate Increase by 100 basis points 112.63 67.56
Decrease by 100 basis points 126.42 76.73
Salary escalation rate Increase by 100 basis points 126.42 76.71
Decrease by 100 basis points 112.50 67.49
Withdrawal rate Increase by 100 basis points 117.89 70.66
Decrease by 100 basis points 120.48 73.17
Notes:

(i) Sensitivity due to mortality is not material, hence the impact of change is not calculatedl.
(ii) The actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present valuation of defined benefit obligation were computed at year end.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current servide cost and past service cost, were
measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
(iif) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government Securitigs as at the balance sheet date for the
estimated term of the obligations.
(iv) The salary escalation rate is computed after considering the seniority, the promotior] and other relevant factors such as,
demand and supply in employment market.

34 Share-based payment
Under Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) of the Company, share options of the Company are granted to the employees.
The share based compensation plan in existence are as below:

a) Employee Stock Option Plan 2018
The Company in it's Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 30 October 2018, has approved to create, grant, issue and allot at
any time in one or more tranches to its employees, selected on the basis of criteria decided by the Board or the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Board under the Employee Stock Option Scheme - Intellegrow Employees Stock Option
Plan - 2018 (ESOP-2018), such number of stock options convertible into Equity Share§ of the Company, in one or more
tranches, not exceeding 727,068 equity shares of face value of ¥ 10 each, at such price and dn such terms and conditions as may
be fixed or determined by the Board or Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board in accordance with the ESOP-
2018, and all applicable provisions of the law and/or guidelines issued by the relevapt authority. Under the Plan, these
options vest over a period of three years and vested options can be exercised any time dufing employment. Upon vesting, the
employee can acquire 1 (one) equity share for every stock option. The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black
Scholes model. Consequent to the above, the Company has granted stock options to emjployees of the Company, details of
which are disclosed in the table below:
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34 Share-based payment (cont'd)

b)

€)

Option activity during the year is summarised below:

ended 31 March 2022

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No. of options Weighted average | No. of options Weighted
Options outstanding at the beginning 6,12,666 71.99 3,42,666 60.01
Granted during the year 4,00,000 87.18 2,95,000 87.18
Lapsed during the year 15,000 87.18 25,000 87.18
Exercised during the year - 71.99 - 60.01
Options outstanding at the end 9,97,666 77.85 6,12,666 71.99
Options exercisable at year end 3,92,329 77.85 1,91,999 71.99

The options outstanding as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 were with the exercise grice of 10 to Z 87.18. The weighted

average of the remaining contractual life is 1.25 year (31 March 2021: 1.5 years).
In the current year, the Holding Company has allotted 1,725 options to the employees
recognised an expense amounting to ¥ 9.18 lakhs as employee compensation expenses.

The Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 has been granted over three years with different]
were used to determine the fair value for options granted:

of the Company. The Company has

vesting dates. The following inputs

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Expected life (in years) 2.50 - 4.50 2.50 - 4.50
Volatility (%) 27.93% 27.93%
Risk free rate (%) 438% to7.31% 4.38% to 7.31%
Exercise price (%) 10 to 87.18 210 to 87.18
Dividend yield 0% 0%
Option fair value 16.85 - 79.98 16.85 - 79.98
Income tax expense
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income tax expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss
Current tax 21.74 75.49
Deferred tax (330.24) (579.94)
Taxes of earlier years (6.97) (26.44)
(315.47) (530.89)
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Taxes on re-measurement of defined benefit plans - -
Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit for the year
Profit before tax 231.30 265.46
Enacted tax rates 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax expense calculated on corporate tax rate 58.22 66.82
Expense disallowed under the provisions of Income tax Act, 1961 (34.14) 8.68
Impact on deferred tax on account of change in tax rates - 2.00
Deferred tax assets recognised
Impairment loss allowances on loans (26.81) (315.92)
On carried forward losses (451.52) (200.84)
Disallowance u/s 43B and other provisions (90.04) (49.64)
On right of use asset (1.95) -
On property, plant and equipment (7.75) (15.53)
On gain on derecognition of assigned receivables 66.35 =
On adjustments for effective interest rate accounting 181.48 -
Other adjustments (2.34) (0.02)
Income tax in respect of earlier years (6.97) (26.44)
At the effective income tax rate of 25.17% (31 March 2021: 25.17%) (315.47) (530.89)
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36 Capital management
The capital management objectives of the Company are:
- to ensure the ability to continue as a going concern
- to provide an adequate return to shareholders
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the risk weighted assets as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).
Management assesses the capital requirements of the Company in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. This takes into
account the subordination levels of the Company’s various classes of debt. The Company mapages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. No changes have been
made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years.
Gearing Ratio As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Debt securities 19,417.00 10,156.24
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 42,774.97 23,999.13
Total debt 62,191.97 34,155.37
Total equity 25,502.67 24,886.83
Net debt to equity ratio 2.44 1.37
Financial instruments and fair value disclosures
The carrying value and fair value of financial assets and liabilities are as follows :-
Fair value Fair value Amortised cost Total Fair value
through profit  through
and loss ocCI

As at 31 March 2022
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 4,42.55 4,472.55 4,472.55
Bank balances other than above - - 7,31#4.48 7,344.48 7,344.48
Loans = = 70,516.00 70,516.00 70,516.00
Investments = - 102.27 102.27 102.27
Other financial assets - - 2,974.96 2,974.96 2,974.96
Total financial assets - - 85,410.26 85,410.26 85,410.26
Trade payables = - 4214 4214 4214
Debt securities - - 19,417.00 19,417.00 19,417.00
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - - 42,774.97 42,774 97 42,774.97
Other financial liabilities - - 2,433.65 2,433.65 2,433.65
Total financial liabilities - - 64,647.76 64,667.76 64,667.76
As at 31 March 2021
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents = - 2,397.18 2,357.18 2,357.18
Bank balances other than above - - 2,5(12.18 2,502.18 2,502.18
Loans - - 49,9(3.81 49,903.81 49,903.81
Other financial assets - - 1,896.01 1,896.01 1,896.01
Total financial assets - - 56,659.18 56,659.18 56,659.18
Trade payables 12 91.12 9112
Debt securities - - 10,156.24 10,156.24 10,156.24
Borrowings (other than debt securities) B - 23,999.13 23,999.13 23,999.13
Other financial liabilities * - 1,664.03 1,664.03 1,664.03
Total financial liabilities - - 35,910.52 35,910.52 35,910.52

-Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. Howeve
estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates
indicative of all the amounts that the Company could have realized or paid in sale transactions as of r{
of the financial instruments subsequent to the respective reporting dates may be different from the amo

I, there are inherent limitations in any
presented above are not necessarily
bspective dates. As such, the fair value
nts reported at each year end.
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A)

Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains
exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

March 2022

e sources of risk which the entity is

Risk Exposure arising Measurement

Management

Credit risk Cash and cash
equivalents,
loans, financial
assets measured
at amortised cost

Ageing analysis

Liquidity risk Borrowings and Rolling cash flow forecasts

other liabilities

Market risk - interest rate Borrowingsat  Sensitivity analysis
variable rates

Market Risk - Security Price Investments in  Sensitivity analysis
securities

Credit risk analysis, diversification
of customers/ asset base, credit
limits, collateral and static pool
analysis.

Availability of sufficient cash, CC/
OD limits, committed credit lines
and borrowing facilities

Pass on the Interest rate increase/
decrease to customers and
borrowings at fixed rate.

Portfolio diversification, exposure
limits/ limits on equity exposure

The Board has the overall responsibility of risk management. There are two committees of the Bo

risk in the organization. In accordance with the RBI guidelines to enable NBFCs to adopt best p

prd which take care of managing overall
ractices and greater transparency in their

operations, the Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee to review risk management in relation
to various risks, namely, market risk, credit risk, and operational risk, and an Asset Liability Man*:gement Committee (ALCO).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. :ie

influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loan assets and other fi

Company's exposure to credit risk is
cial assets. The Company continuously

monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into ity credit risk controls.

Credit risk management

Credit risk management policy provides for identification and assessment of credit risk, assessthent and management of portfolio credit
risk, and risk monitoring and control. The issues relating to the establishment of exposure lithits for various categories, for example,

based on geographical regions, product specific, industry and rating are also covered. The policy

high quality, consistency and uniformity in the appraisal of proposals.

The risk parameters are same for all financial assets for all period presented. The Company
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an

period. In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recg

default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments. Th
considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factor|

The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system. Internal
financial instruments with different characteristics. The Company assigns the following credi
based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.
i) Low credit risk on financial reporting date

ii) Moderate credit risk

iii) High credit risk

The company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

also deals with rating models aiming at

n-going basis throughout each reporting
gnition if the payments are overdue. A
s definition of default is determined by
5.

jTonsiders the probability of default upon

redit rating is performed for each class of
t ratings to each class of financial assets

Asset group Basis for categorisation Provision for expected credit loss

Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, 12 month expected credit loss
loans and other financial assets

Moderate credit risk Loans and other financial assets Life time expected credit loss or 12

month expected credit loss

High credit risk Loans and other financial assets

Life time expected credit loss fully
provided for
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A)

a)

b)
i)

Financial risk management (Contd.)
Credit risk (Contd.)
Credit risk management (Contd.)

Financial assets that expose the entity to credit risk*

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Low credit risk on financial reporting date

Cash and cash equivalents 447255 2,357.18
Bank balances other than above 7,344.48 2,502.18
Loans and corresponding interest receivables 68,383.20 48,819.61
Other financial assets 2,974.96 1,896.01
Moderate credit risk

Loans 1,699.39 1,652.96
High credit risk

Loans 2,882.91 1,783.37

* These represent gross carrying values of financial assets, without deduction for expected credit losses

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying
bank deposits and accounts in different banks across the country.

Loans
The majority of the Company's borrowers are seasoned borrowers with satisfactory credit histpry. The Company closely monitors the
credit-worthiness of the borrower's through internal systems. The Company assesses increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis for
amounts receivable that become past due and default is considered to have occurred when amou.Tts receivable become 90 days past due.

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost
Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes loans and advances to employees, gecurity deposits and others. Credit risk
related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amoun{s continuously.

Expected credit losses for financial assets other than loans
Company provides for expected credit losses on financial assets other than loans by assessing individual financial instruments for
expectation of any credit losses:
- For cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances - Since the Company deals with only high-rated banks and financial institutions,
credit risk in respect of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and bank deposits is eval'ilted as very low.

- For loans comprising security deposits paid - Credit risk is considered low because the Company is in possession of the underlying
asset.
- For other financial assets - Credit risk is evaluated based on Company's knowledge of the credit worthiness of those parties and loss
allowance is measured for 12 month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provide|for lifetime expected credit losses upon
significant increase in credit risk. The Company does not have any expected loss based impairment recognised on such assets considering
their low credit risk nature, though the reconciliation of expected credit loss for all sub categories|of financial assets (other than loans) are
disclosed further:

Estimated gross Expected Expected credit Carrying amount

carrying probability cf losses net of
amount at default impairment
default provision
31 March 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 4,472.55 0% - 447255
Bank balances other than above 7,344 48 0% - 7,344.48
Other financial assets 2,974 96 0% - 2,974.96
31 March 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 2,357.18 0% - 2,357.18
Bank balances other than above 2,502.18 0% - 2,502.18

Other financial assets 1,896.01 0% - 1,896.01




Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in % lakhs unless otherwise stated)

38 Financial risk management (cont'd)
A) Credit risk (cont'd)

b) Expected credit losses for financial assets other than loans (cont'd)

ii) Expected credit loss for loans

Credit risk
Credit risk is the probable risk of loss resulting from a borrower's failure to repay a loan of meet contractual obligations. It arises
principally from the Company’s loans and advances to customers, and investment in debt sequrities. For risk management reporting
purposes, the Company considers and consolidates all elements of credit risk exposure, which ard as follows:

Credit default risk: The risk of loss arising from a debtor being unlikely to pay its loan obljgatiJms in full or the debtor is more than 90
days past due on any material credit obligation.
Concentration risk: The risk associated with any single exposure or group of exposures with the potential to produce large enough losses
to threaten Company's core operations. It may arise in the form of single geographic or sector con¢entration.

Al Credit risk measurement

The Company classifies its risk based on geographies and the type of risk associated with the [business of borrowers and accordingly
classifies the loan assets as:
a) Low credit risk

b) Moderate credit risk

¢) High credit risk

The Company considers qualitative factors that include past recoveries, historical default rates aind macro-economic factors affecting a
particular region.

A2 Expected credit loss measurement
Ind AS 109 outlines a "three stage" model for impairment based on changes in credit quality gince initial recognition as summarised
below:
- A financial instrument that is not credit impaired on initial recognition and whose credit risk hag not increased significantly since initial
recognition is classified as "Stage 1".
- If a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrumenit is moved to "Stage 2" but is not yet
deemed to be credit impaired.

- If a financial instrument is credit impaired, it is moved to "Stage 3".
- Financial instrument in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to expected credit loss that results from default events
possible within the next 12 months.

Instruments in Stage 2 or Stage 3 criteria have their ECL measured on lifetime basis.

A2.1 Significant increase in credit risk
The Company considers a financial instrument to have experienced a significant increase in credit fisk when a set of portfolio experiences
difficulties due to certain macro-economic factors.

A2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets
The Company defines a financial instrument as in default, which is fully aligned with the definition of credit-impaired, when it meets one
of the following criteria:

Quantitative criteria:
The borrower is more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

Qualitative criteria:
The borrower meets unlikeliness to pay criteria, which indicates the borrower is in significant finarjcial difficult. These are instances
where:

- Inability to continue with his business on account of permanent incapacitation.
- Policy changes from the Government including instances such as demonetisation and introductiop of new tax legislation such as Goods
and Services Tax (GST).
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38 Financial risk management (cont'd)
A) Credit risk (cont'd)

ii) Expected credit loss for loans (Cont'd)

A2.3 Measuring ECL - explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques
Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default
(LGD), defined as follows:

- PD represents the likelihood of the borrower defaulting on its obligation either over next 12 monlhs or over the remaining lifetime of the
instrument.
- EAD is based on the amounts that the Company expects to be owed at the time of default over thle next 12 months or remaining lifetime
of the instrument.
- LGD represents the Company’s expectation of loss given that a default occurs. LGD is expressed in percentage and remains unaffected
from the fact that whether the financial instrument is a Stage 1 asset, or Stage 2 or even Stage 3. However, it varies by type of borrower,
availability of security or other credit support.

Probability of default (PD) computation model
PD or default rate is an estimate of the likelihood of the default event (as defined in the previous step) occurring in future. Accordingly, a
lower PD signifies lower credit risk. PD is estimated by using historical data, and is done over g particular time horizon. It is done by
performing vintage analysis over the historical data of default to assess how default rates change over time, and compute the risk of
default in the next 12 months and the entire lifetime of the loan. For loan portfolio where sufficiept historical data is not available, PD is
taken from an external default study report of a credit rating agency.

Loss given default (LGD) computation model
LGD is the credit loss that will be incurred if the borrower defaults. For loan portfolio where suffirient historical data is not available, the
LGD has been considered based on Foundation Internal Rating Based (IRB) framework given|in Circular on Implementation of the
Internal Rating Based (IRB) Approaches for Calculation of Capital Charge for Credit Risk.

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and market
it operates in. The Company records overlays as part of its ECL, to reflect among other things an increased risk of deterioration in macro-
economic factors caused by COVID-19 pandemic.

A.3 Credit risk exposure

ECL Staging

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
31 March 2022
Low credit risk 65,415.21
Moderate credit risk - 1,699.39 -
High credit risk - - 2,882.91
Gross carrying amount 65,415.21 1,699.39 2,882.91
Loss allowance 472.3p 185.25 1,791.86
Carrying amount 64,942.8p 1,514.14 1,091.05
31 March 2021
Low credit risk 48,219.48
Moderate credit risk E 1,652.96 =
High credit risk - - 1,783.37
Gross carrying amount 48,219.48 1,652.96 1,783.37
Loss allowance 1,035.5]1 353.82 962.80
Carrying amount 47,183.9¢ 1,299.14 820.57

A.4 Loss allowance
The loss allowance recognized in the period is impacted by a variety of factors, as described below:
- Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due to financial instruments experiencing significan increases (or decreases) of credit risk or
becoming credit-impaired in the period, and the consequent “step up” (or “step down”) between 12-month and Lifetime ECL.

- Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the period, as well a5 releases for financial instruments de-
recognised in the period. BT

- Financial assets derecognised during the period and write-offs of allowances related to assets thqt were written off during the period.




Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 3]l March 2022

(All amounts in % lakhs unless otherwise stated)
38 Financial risk management (cont'd)
A) Credit risk (cont'd)
ii) Expected credit loss for loans (Cont'd)

A4 Loss allowance (cont'd)

The following tables explain the changes in the loss allowance between the beginning and the

end of the annual period due to these

factors:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

12 months ECL  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
Loans at amortised cost
Balance as at 31 March 2020 302.86 180.42 652.71 1,136.00
New financial assets originated or purchased* 480.21 43.38 36.76 560.36
Transfer to Stage 1 69.85 (69.35) B -
Transfer to Stage 2 (71.46) 71.46 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (31.53) (60.92) 92.45 -
Movement in credit risk on existing loan assets 314.05 238.98 711.01 1,264.04
Financial assets that have been derecognised (27.95) (40.38) - (68.53)
Write offs (0.52) (9.07) (652.61) (662.20)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,035.51 353.2 840.33 2,229.66
New financial assets originated or purchased* 329.20 22.65 51.57 403.42
Transfer to Stage 1 7.19 (7.19) - -
Transfer to Stage 2 (13.93) 13.93 -
Transfer to Stage 3 (208.66) (45.28) 253.94 -22.49
Movement in credit risk on existing loan assets 272.78 138.848 1,276.45 1,751.60
Financial assets that have been derecognised (950.04) (282.42) (408.00) (1,883.50)
Write offs (7.89) (18.60) (426.93) (251.57)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 464.18 175.99 1,587.36 2,227.12

*New assets originated are those assets which have either remained in stage 1 or have become sta

The following table further explains changes in the gross carrying amount of the Loan portfoliol
changes in the loss allowance for the same portfolio as discussed above:

be 2 or 3 at the year end.

to help explain their significance to the

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
12 months ECL  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
Loans at amortised cost
Balance as at 31 March 2020 37,592.87 585.91 921.47 39,100.25
New financial assets originated or purchased* 35,095.78 371.82 7296 35,540.57
Transfer to Stage 2 (1,228.50) 1,228.50 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (1,369.75) (211.40) 1,581.15 -
Financial assets that have been derecognised/ repaid (22,878.24) (303.13) (27.30) (23,209.27)
Write offs (56.70) (18.14) (928.25) (1,003.09)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 47,155.47 1,652.96 1,620.03 50,428.46
New financial assets originated or purchased* 49,684.12 398.44 124.03 50,206.88
Transfer to Stage 1 28.04 (28.04) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (237.67) 237.47 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (11.25) (151.01) 162.25 -
Financial assets that have been derecognised/ repaid (31,054.63) (271.31) 1,915.04 (29,410.90)
Write offs (148.87) (139.42) (938.43) (1,226.92)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 65,415.21 1,699.39 2,882.91 69,997.51
*New assets originated are those assets which have either remained in stage 1 or have become stage 2 or 3 at the year end.
A.5 Concentration of credit risk
The Company monitors concentration of credit risk by type of industry in which the borrower op¢rates:
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Gross carrying amount of loans 69,997.51 50,428.45
Concentration by industry
Loans to NBFCs/MFls 2,365.16 15,043.32
Others 67,632.35 35,385.13

69,997.51 50,428.45
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38 Financial risk management (cont'd)
A) Credit risk (cont'd)

ii) Expected credit loss for loans (Cont'd)
A.6 Write off policy
The Company writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical frecovery efforts and has concluded there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
The outstanding contractual amounts of such assets written off during the year ended 31 Mardh 2022 was ¥ 1,226.92 (March 31, 2021 ¥
1,003.09). The Company still seeks to recover amounts it is legally owed in full, but which have been written off due to no reasonable
expectation of full recovery.

B) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due.

Management of the Company monitors forecast of liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.
The Asset Liability Management Policy aims to align market risk management with overall strategic objectives, articulate current interest
rate view and determine pricing, mix and maturity profile of assets and liabilities. The ass¢t liability management policy involves
preparation and analysis of liquidity gap reports and ensuring preventive and corrective measufes. It also addresses the interest rate risk
by providing for duration gap analysis and control by providing limits to the gaps. The amoupt of total borrowing sanctioned but not
drawn is Nil (31 March 2021: 1,500 lakhs)

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities
for all non-derivative financial liabilities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances dug within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant

31 March 2022 Less than 1 year 1-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 Total
years
Debt securities 5,993.51 13,413.33 - - 19,406.84
Borrowings 27,840.65 14,117.96 444 42,403.05
Trade payables 4214 - [4 - 4214
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost 2,269.36 112.99 2581 25.50 2,433.65
Total 36,145.65 27,644.28 470225 25.50 64,285.68
31 March 2021 Less than 1 year 1-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 Total
years
Debt securities 6,519.50 3,600.16 : - 10,119.66
Borrowings 14,352.47 10,323.64 c - 24,676.11
Trade payables 91.12 - - - 91.12
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost 1,443.63 174.71 3002 15.67 1,664.03
Total 22,406.72 14,098.51 3002 15.67 36,550.92
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38 Financial risk management (cont'd)

C) Market Risk

a)
i)

Interest rate risk

Liabilities
The policy of the Company is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term

+ March 2022

oans and borrowings. The Company is

exposed to changes in market interest rates through loans and bank borrowings at variable intereft rates.

Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to infterest rate risk:

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Variable rate borrowing 27,412.02 13,789.93
Fixed rate borrowing 34,005.06 19,998.37
Total borrowings 61,417.08 33,788.30
Sensitivity

Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity changes in interest rates.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Interest sensitivity*
Interest rates - increase by 100 basis points
Interest rates - decrease by 100 basis points

274.12 137.90
(274.12) (137.90)

* Holding all other variables constant

Assets
The Company’s fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are

as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctua
rates.

erefore not subject to interest rate risk
because of a change in market interest
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39 Lease commitment

The Company has entered into non-cancellable/cancellable leasing arrangements in respect of its
of agreement is of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-{
recognizes the lease payments amounted to 2 103.38 lakhs (31 March 2021: T 137.04 lakhs) as an ope

Future minimum lease payments with respect to non-cancellable operating leases which are not|
follows (undiscounted basis):

iremises/ branches for leases where term
erm and low value leases, the Company
rating expense in the current year.

accounted as Right of Use assets are as

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Within one year 34.05 54.00
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 8.52 52.48
Later than 5 years - -
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements durjng the period:

Buildings Total
As at 31 March 2020 - -
Additions 360.39 360.39
Depreciation expenses 48.56 48.56
As at 31 March 2021 311.83 311.83
Additions 182.94 182.94
Depreciation expenses 150.33 150.33
As at 31 March 2022 344.44 344.44

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loas
during the period:

hs and borrowings) and the movements

Buildings Total
As at 31 March 2020 - -
Additions 360.39 360.39
Accretion of interest 2263 2263
Payment (58.27) (58.27)
As at 31 March 2021 324.76 324.76
Additions 182.94 18294
Accretion of interest 51.08 51.08
Payment (206.57) (206.57)
As at 31 March 2022 352.20 352.20
Lease payments in future periods where right-of-use assets is recognised (undiscounted basis):
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Not later than one year 221.58 153.31
Later than one year and not later than five years 192.90 226.79
Later than five years - 17.87
414.48 397.97
Amount recognised in Statement of profit and loss account and statement of cashflow on right of use assets
For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Amount recognised in Statement of profit and loss account

Depreciation on right of use assets 150.33 48.56
Interest on lease liabilities 51.08 2263
Expenses relating to short term leases and low value assets 103.38 137.04
Amount recognised in Statement of Cashflow

Total cash outflow for leases 206.57 5827
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40 Segment information
The Company is engaged in lending which is considered to be the only reportable business segment as per Ind AS 108, Operating Segments.
The Company operates primarily in India and there is no other geographical segment.

41 Contingent liabilities and commitment
There are no contingent liabilities and outstanding commitments as at reporting dates. The amoupt of loans sanctioned but not disbursed

amounts to ¥ 1,427.85 lakhs (31 March 2021: ¥ 262.90 lakhs).

42 Classification and provisions for loan portfolio owned

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Asset classification

Loan outstanding

Standard assets 67,114.60 49,872.44
Substandard assets 2,882.91 1,783.37
Doubtful assets - -

Less: Provision

Standard assets 657.64 1,389.33
Substandard assets 1,791.86 962.80
Doubtful assets - -
Loan outstanding (net)

Standard assets 66,456.96 48,483.11
Substandard assets 1,091.05 820.57
Doubtful assets - -

43 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company 1 Systemically Important Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, RBI/DNB 6-17/45, Master Direction DNBR. PD.
008/03.10.119/2016-17, dated September 01, 2016, (Updated as on February 23, 2018) issued by the RBI.

Liabilities side: 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amount Amount Amount Amount

a. Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial
company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

(a) Debentures (Secured)

Secured 19,417.00 - 10,156.24 -
Unsecured - s - _
(b) Deferred credits - - - -
(c) Term loans (secured) 42,774.97 - 23,999.13 -
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - - - -
(e) Commercial paper ~ - - -
(f) Other loans from financial institutions (Secured) - - - E
62,191.97 - 34,155.37 -
Assets side: 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
b. Break-up of loans and advances:
(a) Secured 10,731.39 13,962.54
(b) Unsecured 59,266.12 36,465.91
69,997.51 50,428.45

¢. Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC acﬁviFes
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
(a) Financial lease - =
(b) Operating lease - -
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire - =
(b) Repossessed Assets - #
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43 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction (Contd.)

Assets side:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

c. Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above

d. Break-up of investments :

Current investments

1. Quoted

(i) Shares :

(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify)

2. Unquoted

(i) Shares :

(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify)

Long term investments

1. Quoted

(i) Shares :

(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify)

2. Unquoted

(i) Shares :

() Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (Investment in PTCs)

e. Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (b) and (c)

Category
For 31 March 2022
1 Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group
(c) Other related parties
2 Other than related parties

Amount (standard assets net of provisions)

Secured Unsecured Total
- 727.94 727.94
10,731.39 59,266.12 69,997.51

10,731.39 59,994.06 70,725.45
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43 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction (Contd.)

e. Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (b) and (c) (Contd.)

[March 2022

For 31 March 2021

Se

cured Unsecured

1 Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group
(c) Other related parties

2 Other than related parties

13,962.54

422 94

36,465.91

50,428.45

13,962.54

36,888.85

50,428.45

f. Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long-term) in shares and securities (both quoted and

unquoted):
Category Market value / Breakup ox fair Book value (net of provisions)
value or NAV
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1 Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - - -
(b) Companies in the same group - - B -
(c) Other related parties E - - -
2 Other than related parties 102.27 - 102.27 -
g. Other information
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties - -
(b) Other than related parties 2,882.91 1,783.37
(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties = -
(b) Other than related parties 1,091.05 820.57
iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt B -
(i) Capital Risk Asset Ratio
As at As at
S1.No. Items 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a) Capital risk Asset Ratio (%) 28.58% 40.89%
(b) Capital risk Asset Ratio (%) - Tier I Capital (%) 27.71% 39.64%
(c) Capital risk Asset Ratio (%) - Tier II Capital (%) 0.87% 1.25%

(ii) Derivatives:
The Company has no transaction/exposure in derivatives in the current and previous year
currency exposure as on 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: Nil)

(iii) Exposures:

The Company has no exposure to the real estate sector and capital market directly or indirg

(iv) Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
Maturity pattern of certain Assets and Liabilities as on 31 March 2022

The Company has no unhedged foreign

ictly in the current and previous years.

Assets Liabilities

Advances Investments Borrowings
1 day to 7 days 1,980.91 102.27 351.34
7 days to 14 days 270.10 - 622.76
15 days to 30/31 days (one month) 290.79 - 1,391.12
Over one month to 2 months 2,%69.86 - 2,983.00
Over 2 months upto 3 months 2,606.92 - 3,591.28
Over 3 months to 6 months 7,155.05 - 9,061.71
Over 6 months to 1 year 14,111.41 - 15,832.95
Over 1 year to 3 years 36,857.09 - 27,531.29
Over 3 years to 5 years 3,692.26 - 44444
Over 5 years 46312 - =
Total 69,997.51 102.27 61,809.89
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43 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction (Contd.)
(iv) Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities (Contd.)
Maturity pattern of certain Assets and Liabilities as on 31 March 2021

Assets Liabilities
Advarnces Investments Borrowings
1 day to 7 days 73.95 < 108.87
7 days to 14 days 1,122.68 - 69.17
15 days to 30/31 days (one month) 1,009.07 - 713.50
Over one month to 2 months 3,387.67 B 3,191.47
Over 2 months upto 3 months 2,321.02 - 2,304.68
Over 3 months to 6 months 6,175.65 B 4,019.41
Over 6 months to 1 year 10,342.35 - 9,689.98
Over 1 year to 3 years 22,314.94 - 13,923.80
Over 3 years to 5 years 2,913.34 - -
Over 5 years 86.78 . -
Total 50,428.45 - 34,020.88
(v) Disclosures relating to securitization:
The Company has not undertaken any securitization transactions during the current year apd the previous year.
(vi) For Assignment transaction
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No./Amount  No./Amount
1. No. of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for assignment transactions 11 1
2. Total amount of assigned assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC* 11,278.48 1,187
3. Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of
Balance Sheet* 1,104.80 118.69
Off-balance sheet exposures
* First loss -
* Others -
b) On-balance sheet exposures
* First loss -
* Others 1,104.80 118.69
4. Amount of exposures to assignment transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own assignment
* First loss - -
* Others £ -
ii) Exposure to third party assignment
* First loss - =
* Others - -

b) On-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own assignment
* First loss - -
* Others - -
ii) Exposure to third party assignment
* First loss - -
* Others - -
*During the current year, the Company has entered into a PTC transaction which meets the conditions of derecognition of financial
assets as per Ind AS 109. Accordingly, the Company has derecognised the PTC loans from its Loan balances.

(vii) Details of financial assets sold to securitisation / reconstruction company for asset recongtruction:
The Company has not sold financial assets to securitisation/reconstruction companies fof asset reconstruction in the current and
previous year.

(viii) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold:
The Company has not purchased / sold non-performing financial assets in the current and previous year.
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43 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction (Contd.)
(ix) Details of financing of parent company products:

March 2022

This disclosure is not applicable as the Company has not entered into any such type of trangaction.

(x) Unsecured advances

Refer note 7 for unsecured advances. The Company has not given any advances against the

(xi) Registration obtained from other financial regulators
The Company has not obtained registration from other financial regulators.

(xii) Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

There were no penalties imposed on the Company by RBI or any other regulator in the curr|

(xiii) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

rights, licenses, authorisations, etc.

ent or previous financial year.

Instrument Amount Rating Rating$ as at Ratings as at
Company 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2,000.00 CARE Ratings BBB (Triple B) with a stable BBB -' (Triple B Minus) with a
Proironed Liiig Tet outlook Positive Outlook
Bank Facilities 5,000.00 Acuite Ratings BBB+ (Triple B Plus) with a Not applicable
& Research stable ogtlook
8,000.00 CARE Ratings BBB (Triple B) with a stable BBB -' (Triple B Minus) with a
oytlook Positive Outlook
Non-Convertible
Debentures 10,000.00  Acuite Ratings BBB+ (Triple B Plus) with a Not applicable
& Research stable ogtlook
(xiv) Draw down from reserves
There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 Mardh 2021: Nil).
(xv) Provisions and Contingencies (shown under the head expenditure in Statement of Profitjand Loss)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Impairment on loans 97.37 787.59
Provision for current tax 21.74 7549
Provision for gratuity 46.52 30.82
(xvi) Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Concentration of Advances
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 4,032.54 5,114.86
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the Company 5.76% 10.14%
Concentration of Exposures
Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ customers 4,032.54 5114.86
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ customers to total exposure of the
Company on borrowers/ customers 5.76% 10.14%
Concentration of Exposures
Total exposures to top four NPA accounts 683.62 583.58
(xvii) Sector-wise NPAs
Percentage of gross NPAs to total advances in that sector
Sector As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Agriculture & allied activities D.00% 0.00%
MSME .00% 0.00%
Corporate borrowers .12 % 3.54%
Services D.00% 0.00%
Auto loans D.00% 0.00%
Other personal loans D.00% 0.00%




(xviii) Customer complaints
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - -
No. of complaints received during the year 23 2
No. of complaints redressed during the year 22 2
No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 1 -
43 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction (Contd.)
(xix) Details of investments
This disclosure is not applicable as the Company does not have any investments.
(xx) Movement of NPAs
SI No Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 1.56% 1.55%
ii Movement of NPAs (Gross)
i)  Opening balance 1,620.03 921.47
ii) Additions during the year 2,882.91 1,620.03
iii) Reductions during the year (1,620.03) (921.47)
iv) Closing balance 2,882.91 1,620.03
iii Movement of Net NPAs
i)  Opening balance 779.70 268.76
ii)  Additions during the year 1,091.05 779.70
iii) Reductions during the year (779.70) (268.76)
iv) Closing balance 1,091.05 779.70
iv Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on standard assets)
i)  Opening balance 840.33 652.82
ii) Provisions made during the year 1,791.86 840.33
iii) Write-back of excess provisions (840.33) (652.82)
iv) Closing balance 1,791.86 840.33
(xxi) Disclosure of restructured accounts
Type of Restructuring Othdrs
For Year ended 31 March 2021
Asset Classification Standard Sub-Standard Doubtful Loss Total
Details
Restructured Accounts as on 1 No. of borrowers 155.00 19.00 - - 174
April (opening figures) Amount outstanding 1,899.67 2,211.57 - E 4,111.24
Provision thereon 438.40 199.20 - - 637.60
Fresh restructuring during the No. of borrowers 79 11 - - 90
year under COVID Circulars Amount outstanding 852.83 118.32 - - 971.15
Provision thereon 2209 69.34 - - 91.43
Upgradations to restructured No. of borrowers B - - - -
standard category during the Amount outstanding - - - - -
Y Provision thereon - - - - -
Restructured standard
advances which cease to
attract higher provisioning No. of borrowers B - L v =
and / or additional risk
weight at the end of the FY
and hence need not be shown Amount outstanding - - - - -
as restructured standard
advances at the beginning of
the next FY Provision thereon - . . - -
Down gradations of No. of borrowers - 27.00 - - 27.00
restructured accounts during Amount outstanding - 1,020.07 - B 1,020.07
the FY Provision thereon - 581.73 . - 581.73
Write-offs/Closure of No. of borrowers 89.00 2.00 - E 91.00
restructured accounts during Amount outstanding 1,434.45 358.72 - - 1,793.17
the FY Provision thereon 212.89 201.16 - - 414.05
Restructured Accounts as on No. of borrowers 140 39 = - 179
31 March (closing balance) Amount outstanding 2,159.12 1,164.21 - - 3,323.33
Provision thereon 106.06 741.28 - - 84734
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43 Additional disclosure required by RBI (cont'd)
(xxi) Disclosure of restructured accounts (cont'd)
Type of Restructuring Othexs

For Year ended 3] March 2021

Asset Classification

Details Standard Sub-Standard Doubtful Loss Total
Restructured Accounts as on 1 No. of borrowers - 1 - - 1
April (opening figures)  Amount outstanding - 349.82 - - 349.82
Provision thereon - 413 - - 413
Fresh restructuring during the No. of borrowers - 15 - - 15
year Amount outstanding - 1,836.87 - - 1,836.87
Provision thereon - 241.20 - - 241.20
Fresh restructuring during the No. of borrowers 155 3 - - 158
year under COVID Circulars Amount outstanding 1,899.67 24.88 - - 1,924.55
Provision thereon 196.47 13.28 - B 209.75
Upgradations to restructured No. of borrowers - - - - =
standard category during the Amount outstanding - - - - -
FY Provision thereon - - = - -
Restructured standard No. of borrowers - - - - -
advances which cease to
attract higher provisioning
and / or additional risk
weight at the end of the FY
and hence need not be shown Amount outstanding - A = - :
as restructured standard
advances at the beginning of
the next FY Provision thereon - - - - -
Down gradations of No. of borrowers - - - - -
restructured accounts during Amount outstanding - - - - -
the FY Provision thereon - s - - -
Write-offs of restructured  No. of borrowers - - - - -
accounts during the FY Amount outstanding s - ” - -
Provision thereon - - - - -
Restructured Accounts as on No. of borrowers 155 19 - - 174
31 March (closing balance) Amount outstanding 1,899.67 2,211.57 - - 4,111.24
Provision thereon 438.40 199.20 - - 637.60

44 Disclosure of frauds as per

Instances of fraud for the year ended 31 March 2022
There were no instances of fraud reported for the year ended 31 March 2022

Instances of fraud for the year ended 31 March 2021
There were no instances of fraud reported for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reservq
RBI/DNBS/2016-17/49 Master Direction DNBS. PPD.01/66.15.001/2016-17 dated September 29, 20]

applicable" has not been furnished.

46 Expenditure in foreign currency

16

45 Additional information as required under paragraph 5 of the part II of the Schedule III to the Act g the extent either "nil” or "not

Bank) Directions, 2016. circular no.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Income in foreign currency

Miscellaneous income (service fees)

Expenditure in foreign currency

Software license fees
Travel and conveyance

6.98
0.54

5.89
3.42

47 Value of import in foreign currency on CIF basis
There are no import of capital goods during the current and previous year.




Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

48 Other RBI disclosures
a) Disclosures as per RBI Circular DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dt. 13 March 2020 for comparison between Income
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms and Ind AS 109

For 31 March 2022
Asset Classification as per Asset classification Gross Carrying Loss Net (Jarrying Provisions Difference
RBI Norms as per Ind AS109 Amount as per Allowances Amount required as per  between Ind
Ind AS (Provisions) as IRACP norms AS109
required under provisions and
Ind AS 109 IRACP norms
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 65,355.54 460.93 64,894.61 372.80 88.13
Stage 2 1,372.19 111.22 1,260.97 30.56 80.66
Standard assets classified as
substandard as per Stage 1 388.20 3.24 38496 38.82 -35.58
Restructuring guidelines Stage 2 331.29 64.37 266.92 33.13 31.24
Subtotal 67,447.22 639.76 66,807.46 475.31 164.45
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 2,889.99 1,587.36 1,302.63 288.29 1,299.07
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 = o * - -
1 to 3 years Stage 3 - B - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - B -
Subtotal for doubtful - - - - -
Loss Stage 3 - - - - =
Subtotal for NPA - - - - -
Other items which are in the
scope of Ind AS 109 but not Stage 1 - - - - -
covered under current IRACP Stage 2 - - - . o
norms
Stage 3 - - - E -
Subtotal - - - - -
Stage1 65,743.74 464.17 63,279.57 411.62 52.55
Total Stage 2 1,703.48 175.59 1,527.89 63.69 111.90

Stage 3 2,889.99 1,587.36 1,302.63 288.29 1,299.07
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48 Other RBI disclosures (Contd.)
b) Disclosures as per RBI Circular DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dt. 13 Marclj 2020 for comparison between Income
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms and Ind AS 109: (Contd.)

For 31 March 2021
Asset Classification as per Asset classification Gross Carrying Loss Net Carrying Provisions Difference
RBI Norms as per Ind AS109 Amount as per Allowances Amount required as per  between Ind
Ind AS (Provisions) as IRACP norms AS5109
required under provisions and
Ind AS 109 IRACP norms
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 45,653.50 869.21 44{784.29 265.04 604.17
Stage 2 1,318.05 230.62 1{087.43 17.83 212.79
Standard assets classified as
substandard as per Stage 1 1501.95 166.3 1335.65 150.2 16.1
Restructuring guidelines Stage 2 334.92 123.2 211.72 33.49 89.71
48,808.42 1,389.33 47419.09 466.56 922.77
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 1,620.03 840.33 779.70 163.25 677.08
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 - - - - -
1 to 3 years Stage 3 - - - B E
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for doubtful - - - - -
Loss Stage 3 B - - B -
Subtotal for NPA - - - - -
Other items which are in the
scope of Ind AS 109 but not Stage 1 - - - - -
covered under current IRACP Stage 2 = = & - 3
norms
Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal - - - - -
Stage1 47,155.45 1,035.51 46/119.94 415.24 620.27
Total Stage 2 1,652.97 353.82 1j299.15 51.32 302.50
Stage 3 1,620.03 840.33 779.70 163.25 677.08

c) Disclosures in terms of RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. N0.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 04 November 2019 have been given below:

(i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty on borrowings

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of significant counterparties 21 11
Amount of borrowed funds from significant counterparties 59,543.45 25,185.49
Percentage of total deposits Not applicable Not applicable
Percentage of total liabilities 91.5% 69.7%

Notes:
i) A “Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in
aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for other non-fleposit taking NBFCs.

ii) Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Assets less Equity share capital less Reservé & Surplus and computed basis extant
regulatory ALM guidelines.
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48 Other RBI disclosures (Contd.)
¢) Disclosures in terms of RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 04 November 2019: Contd.

(ii) Top 20 large deposits (amount in ¥ lakhs and % of total deposits) - Not applicable

(iii) Top 10 borrowings

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Amount of borrowed funds from top ten significant counterparties* 43,174.52 30,877.65
% of total borrowings® 69.9% 90.8%
Note:
*Accrued interest on borrowings have not been considered in above calculation.
*Total borrowing has been computed as gross total debt basis extant regulatory ALM guidelines.
(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument / product
Name of the instrument/product As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Amount* % of total Amount* % of total

liabilities liabilities

Debt securities 19,406.84 29.8% 9,940.01 27.5%
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 42,403.05 65.2% 24,080.87 66.6%

Note:
(i) A "significant instrument/product” is defined as a single instrument/product of group of pimilar instruments/products which in
aggregate amount to more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for otheg non-deposit taking NBFCs.

(ii) Total liabilities has been computed as total assets less equity share capital less reserve & surplys and computed basis extant regulatory
ALM guidelines.

* Figures are based on gross borrowing outstanding and does not includes accrued interest and othgr Ind AS adjustments.

(V) Stock ratios in percentage

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1. Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities Not Applicable Not Applicable
2. Commercial papers as a % of total assets Not Applicable Not Applicable
3. Commercial papers as a % of public fund Not Applicable Not Applicable
4. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total liabilities 9.2% 18.3%
5. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total assets 6.6% 10.8%
6. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of public fund* 9.7% 19.2%
7. Other short-term liabilities as a % of total liabilities 55.5% 60.8%
8. Other short-term liabilities as a % of total assets 39.9% 36.0%
9. Other short-term liabilities as a % of public fund* 58.48% 63.97%

*Public funds is as defined in Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company
and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Direction, 2016.

(vi) Institutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management
Refer note 37.
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49 Relationship with struck off companies

The Company has not entered into any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of Companies Act, 1956.

50 Undisclosed income

There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts, that has been surrenflered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any jother relevant provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961).

51 Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or otheir lender.
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52

b)

¢) Details pertaining to identifiable intangible assets as on the date of acquisition

d) Details pertaining to acquired receivables as on the date of acquisition

Business combination
The Company has acquired 'IntelleCash' business from Arohan on 1 January 2021 as a going co
acquired consists of loan products and services same as offered by the Company.

Quantitative details of shares acquired and purchase consideration

81 March 2022

ncern on slump sale basis. The business

Purchase consideration - Cash consideration 6,305.16

Disclosure related to net assets acquired in business combination:

Particulars 1 January 2021

Non-financial assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 33.20

(b) Other Intangible assets 1.17

34.37

Financial assets

(c) Loans (refer note 1 below) 4,273.27

(d) Other financial assets 45.27
4,318.54

Total assets 4,352.91

Financial liabilities

(a) Other financial liabilities 56.85

Total liabilities 56.85

Total identifiable net assets as on date of acquisition 4,296.06

Goodwill arising on acquisition 2,009.10

Purchase Consideration transferred 6,305.16

Notes

1. Loans is net of credit impairment recorded and it is expected that the amounts recorded are
2. No contingent liabilities as on the acquisition date

3. The goodwill comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisitions and a
recognised. It does not meet the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset under Ind AS
expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

Identifiable intangible assets
Software

i. the fair value of the receivables
ii. the gross contractual amounts receivable

fuTJy collectible

workforce list, which is not separately

88. None of the goodwill recognised is

1.17

4,697.21
4,660.52

) Disclosure related to combined entity’s revenue and profits as if the acquisition had been doTe at beginning of the period

Particulars Revenue for the  Pre-acquisition Consolidated Revenue as if the
year ended 31 period revenug  acquisition had been done at the
March 2021 beginning of the year
Revenue
Interest income 12,000.16 1,502.98 13,503.14
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 546.77 609.p2 1,156.29

Note on De-merger
The Board of Directors in the meeting held on 22 July 2020 approved the scheme of de-merger
Private Limited into and with the Company with an appointed date of 1 April 2021. The sc|
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT') on 15 September 2020. The Board of Directors have
April 2022 for the scheme and application has been filed with the NCLT. As on date of these ¢
by the NCLT.

Events after balance sheet date

pf demerged undertaking of TribeTech
heme has been filed with Honourable
ipproved a revised appointed date of 1
sults, the scheme is yet to be approved

There are no significant events that have occurred after balance sheet date but before the date of :rigning of these financial statements.
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number of new cases had increased significantly in India, had resulted in re-imposition of regional lockdown measures in various parts
of the country in April and May 2021. The second wave started to subside from June 2021 ohwards and there has been a lifting of
lockdowns, thereby resulting in gradual increase in economic activity.

55 The Covid 19 pandemic has impacted most economies globally, including India. The second \{Bje of COVID-19 pandemic, where the

The impact, including credit quality and provision, of the Covid-19 pandemic, on the Company, is uncertain and will depend on the
spread of Covid-19, the effectiveness of current and future steps taken by the government and the RBI to mitigate the economic impact,
and the time it takes for economic activities to return to pre-pandemic levels. The Company haSIEQII duly servicing its debt obligations,
has not taken the benefit of moratorium on any of its borrowings, maintains a healthy capital alequacy ratio and has adequate capital
and financial resources to run its business.

The management will continue to monitor any material changes in the macro-economic factors jmpacting the Company. The provision
held by the Company are in excess of RBI prescribed norms.

This is the summary of accounting policies and other explanatory information referred to in our report of even date.

For Batliboi and Purohit For and on behalf of the Board of Dire¢tors
Chartered Accountants Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Firm registration number: 101048W

Janak Mehta
Partner Vineet Chandra Rai Nikesh Kumar Sinha
Membership No: 116976 Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00606290 DIN: 08268336
Kiran Agarwal Todi Monika Variava
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 5 May 2022 Date: 5 May 2022
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Dear Members,

Your Board of Directors (the “Board”) takes pleasure in presenting Twenty Forth (24™)

of the Ashv Finance Limited (Erstwhile known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited) (the “Comp#

with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31-Mar-2022:

FINANCIAL RESULTS:
The financial performance of the Company is summarised below:

31-Mar-2022
(Rupees in

Particulars
(Rupees in

Lakhs)

(All amounts in X unless othg
31-Mar-202:.

Annual Report
iny”) together

A

rwise stated)
Change
(%)

| Revenue from Business Operations 12,799.67 9,079.8] 29%
| Other Income 52 72 92.46¢ -75%
' Total Revenues ) 12,852.39 91722  29%
PI&:‘; Expenses o - 6 50_8“28 - 554 9 . 199\;
I Prof' t before Interest and Deprecnatmn 6, 344.11_ 3,877. 3} - 39% .
| Less: Interest - 584032 3,454.06  41% |
| Profit befor; Bepreaatlon ____;__ _ s 503.79 832 16%'I
' Less: Depreciation 272.49 157.79 42% |
Profit after Depreciation and Interest 3730 265.46 15%
| Less: Current Income Tax ) 2174 75.49 ._2Hd
Less: Deferred tax benefits 33024 57998  -76% |
| Less: Taxes of earlier years -6.97 -26.44 279% |
| Profit after Tax L 671 7935 -46%
Other comprehenswe income, Net of tax 831 2.34 72% |
{ Comprehenswe income for the year 533_46_— ‘iéi;bli_ 3 :;Iﬁ_:
' Amount transferred to Statutory Reserve pursuant 11000  160.0p '-45%_*5
| to Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Act, ;
1934 i
| Balance carried to Balance Sheet RN i | 28Rl GAON -48%
-_E:;r:mgs per share [Basu:} - - 163 23f -46% |
{ Earnmgs per share (Dlluted] v G ‘ Iaﬁ' _18:9 ' -46% |

The above figures are extracted from the Financial Statements prepared in accordan
Accounting Standards (“IND AS”) as notified under Sections 129 and 133 of the Comp4
(“the Act”) read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other relevant provis|
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND COMPANY’S STATE OF AFFAIRS:
During the year under review, the total revenue of the Company was %12,799.67 lakhg
was X546.77 lakhs.

ce with Indian
nies Act, 2013
ons of the Act
Requirements)

and Net Profit
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The Company has digbursed X59,714.08 Lakhs of fresh loans as compared to X 44,292.37 Lakhs. fresh

loans in the previous
by 29%

During the year unde

Vishakhapatnam, VaE

excluding a registere
team accordingly.

A detailed overview

financial year FY21. Accordingly, the revenue of the Company has also grown up

r review, we have opened up branches in Ahmednagar, Chandigarh, Vijayawada,
ai, Kalyan, Dehradun, Raipur, Jaipur, etc. As of today, a total of 31 branches
office situated in Mumbai have been opened up and have built up a distribution

bf the state of affairs of the Company, Industry Overview, future outlook etc. is

provided in the Manggement Discussion and Analysis section, enclosed with this report.

SCHEME OF ARRANG
The Company had in
the Company held o

EMENT WITH TRIBETECH PRIVATE LIMITED:
its meeting of the Audit and Compliance Committee and Board of Directors of
n 22-Jul-2020 approved the Scheme of Arrangement (the “Scheme”) between

TribeTech Private Linpited (the “Transferor Company”) and Ashv Finance Limited (erstwhile known as

Jain Sons Finlease L
Section 230 to 232

and rules framed t
Transferor Company|

technology platform Ja

During the year und
wave 2, multiple rest

mited) (the “Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders under
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and other applicable provision of the Act
ereunder to rationalize the business operations and activities of both, the
and the Transferee Company, by bringing together the synergy between the
nd the distribution capabilities of the two companies.

r review, due to continuing the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on account of
ictions were placed by the Government of India by way of announcing lockdowns

at various intervals in the year 2021. Due to this, there has been a significant impact on the regular

working of courts, off

fices, and regulatory authorities’ offices again. In view of the same, the Company

has passed the resolyition for changing the appointed date from 01-Apr-2021 to 01-Apr-2022 by way

of taking requisite a
Directors of the Com

pbprovals in its meeting of the Audit and Compliance Committee and Board of
pany held on 09-Feb-2022. Currently, a joint application has been filed by the

Company before the|Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench to take on record the

aforesaid fact regard

CHANGE IN THE NA
There has been no ¢

RESOURCE MOBILIZA
During the year und
through various cha
placement basis and
Planning Policy.

a. Non-Convertible

ng the change in the ‘appointed date’; the application is pending for hearing.

RE OF BUSINESS:
ange in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review.

ATION:

br review, the Company has raised funds from Banks and Financial Institutions
hnels including Term Loans, Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) on a private
becuritization of loan assets of the Company in line with the Company’s Resource

Debentures:

During the year undgr review, the Company has raised funds by way of issuance of Non-Convertible

Debentures (NCDs) o

n a Private Placement basis as mentioned below:
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Date of
Allotment

Description of NCDs

Face Value
(FV) (inX)

(R

Nominal
Value (in X)

pees In Lakhs)
Principal
Ciutstanding
(inX)

Maturity
Date

23-Jun-2021 Secured Rated Listed Redeemable 2500 1,00,000 2,500 2,500 14-Oct-2022 |
| Transferable Principal Protected |
g Market Linked Non-Convertible |
'; __ Debentures et A i
| 29-Jun-2021 Unlisted, Rated Unsubordlnated 2000 1,00,000 2,000 2,000 30-Sep-2024 |
{ Secured, Transferable, Redeemable, l
5 Principal Protected Market Linked |
Debentures - - . '
13-Aug-2021 Rated, Senior, Secured, Listed, 200 1000000 2,000 1,440 13-Sep-2023 |
Redeemable, Transferable Non-
Convertible Debentures (“NCDs” or
“Debentures”) g S _|
12-Nov-2021 Rated, Unlisted, 3000 1,00,000 3,000 2,500 25-Oct-2024 |
| Senior, Redeemable, 5
' Transferable, Non-
| Convertible
Debentures (“NCDs” ,
| or"Debentures) S |
j 21-Dec-2021 Rated, Unlisted, Senior, 1700 1,00,000 1,700 1,700 20-Dec-2024
| Redeemable, Transferable, Non-
' Convertible Debentures (“NCDs” or ‘
‘ “Debentures”) ;
l 23-Dec-2021 Secured, Rated, Unlisted, 37000 10,000 3,700 3,700 23-Dec-2024 .
] Redeemable, Transferable, Taxable, i
| INR denominated (“NCDs” or
- “Debentures”) - IR | -
31-Mar-2022 Rated, Unlisted, Senlor Secured 210 10,00,000 2,100 2,100 07-Mar-2025

Redeemable,

Taxable,

Non-

Convertible Debentures (“NCDs” or

“Debentures”)

Funds raised through private placement of debentures were utilized for the purpose as
mentioned in the offer documents.

b. Bank & Financial Institution:
During the year under review, Banks & Financial Institutions remains an important squrce of funding
for your Company. Financial Institution continued their support to your Company during the Financial
Year. Borrowing outstanding as of 31-Mar-2022 from Bank and Financial Institutions were X51,310.71
Lakhs as against X 33,795.18 Lakhs in the previous year. Also, during the year,
Borrowing from Bank & Financial Institutions were Rs. 42,900.00 Lakhs as against Rs.
in the previous years.

¢. Securitization:
Borrowing outstanding as of 31-Mar-2022 by way of Securitization of loan assets of th¢ company were
% 10,106.37 Lakhs. During the year under review, the Company has raised funds of X15,003.25 Lakhs.

the Company’s
P3,500.00 Lakhs




ASHV FINANCE LIMITED

BOARD'S REPORT FY

EAshv

SHKAAR GROUP

p021-22

AL

No interest payment o
as of 31-Mar-2022. Th
discharge the claims d
become due.

SHARE CAPITAL:
a. Authorized Share (

- principal repayment of the Term Loans and on Debentures was due and unpaid
e assets of the Company which are available by way of security are sufficient to
f the banks, financial institutions and debt security holders as and when they

apital:

During the year unde

review, there is no change in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company.

Authorized Share Capi

al of the Company as of 31-Mar-2022 is as below:

Particulars No. of Nominal
Shares Amount (In X)

Equity Shares 7,34,00,000 73,40,00,000
(FV of X10/- each)
Series C Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 60,00,000 6,00,00,000
(FV of X10/- each)
Series D Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 56,00,000 5,60,00,000
(FV of X10/- each)

Total 8,50,00,000 85,00,00,000

b. Issued, Subscribed| and Paid-up Share Capital:

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares either through private
placement basis, throyigh differential rights, public issue, bonus issue, sweat equity issue, or bought
back any securities. The issued, subscribed, and paid-up share capital of the Company as of 31-Mar-

2022 are as below:

Equity Shares

(FV of X10/- each)
Series C Compulsori
(FV of X10/- each)

I
Series D Compulsori[

(FV of X10/- each)

EMPLOYEES STOCK O

Particulars No. of Nominal Amount
Shares (InX)
3,36,15,301 33,61,53,010
Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 58,49,966 5,84,99,660
Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 26,27,724 2,62,77,240
Total 4,20,92,991 42,09,29,910
PTION PLAN:

With a view to reward the key employees for their association, dedication, and contribution to the

goals of the Company

your Company had formulated and implemented the “IntelleGrow Employee

Stock Option Plan 20118” (IntelleGrow ESOP 2018), ESOP Scheme 1, and formulated “Ashv Finance —

Employee Stock Optio
pertaining to the Schg
“Transferor Company”
“Transferee Company]
the Company, inter

regulations. The detail
of the Companies (Sh
Annexure-A and form

CHANGE IN CONSTITU

n 2021, ESOP Scheme 2, which shall be effective upon the receipt of NCLT order
bme of Arrangement (the “Scheme”) between TribeTech Private Limited (the
) and Ashv Finance Limited (erstwhile known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited) (the
). The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of
hlia, administers and monitors the Scheme in accordance with applicable
5 of the Employee Stock Option Plan as required to be provided under Rule 12(9)
are Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 are annexed to this Report as an
5 an integral part of the Report.

TIONAL DOCUMENTS:
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During the year under review, there is no change in Memorandum of Association [and Articles of
Association of the Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
During the year under review, the Company has transferred X 110 Lakhs to the Stdtutory Reserve
maintained under Section 45IC of the RBI Act, 1934,

DIVIDEND:
Considering your Company’s rapid growth and future strategy and plans and with a view to conserve
capital, your Directors consider it prudent to conserve the resources of the Comp3ny and do not
recommend any dividend to any of its shareholders for the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
a. Retirement by Rotation:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with Companies (Agpointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of the Company,| Ms. Anuradha
Ramachandran (DIN: 01983108), Nominee Director of the Company, being longest in the office, retires
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, have offered herself for re-
appointment and your Directors recommends her re-appointment. Declaration fr the Director
under Section 164(2) of the Act had been received.

b. Appointment of Directors:
During the year under review, upon recommendation of the Members of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held pn 08-Feb-2022
and 09-Feb-2022 respectively had appointed Mr. Sagar Shyamkant Thakar (DIN: 0$481269) as an
Additional Director (Nominee of Legal Owner Triodos Funds B.V., in its capacity as|legal owner of
Triodos Fair Share Fund and Triodos SICAV Il — Triodos Microfinance Fund) of the Comjpany subject to
approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Companpy has received
notice under section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the
Company. Your Directors recommends his appointment.

c. Composition of Board:
As on date, the Board comprises of 8 (Eight) Directors viz:

1. Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai - Chairman & Director
2. Mr. Rakesh Rewari - Independent Director
3. Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar - Independent Director
4. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran - Nominee Director

5. Ms. Suma Swaminathan - Nominee Director

6. Mr. Anurag Agrawal - Director

7. Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha - Managing Director

8. Mr. Sagar Thakar - Additional Director

d. Declaration from Independent Directors:
The Company has received declarations from Mr. Rakesh Rewari and Ms. Matang| Gowrishankar,
Independent Directors of the Company, confirming that they met the criteria of ildependence as
stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Act read with rules framed thereunder.

e. Disqualification of Directors:




ASHV FINANCE LIMITED
BOARD'S REPORT FY p021-22

The Company has recdived declarations from all the Directors including Independent Directors of the
Company confirming that they are not disqualified on account of non-compliance with any of the
provisions of the Act ahd as stipulated in Section 164 of the Act.

f. Declaration of Fit & Proper Criteria:
All the Directors of the Company have given the declaration to the effect that they are Fit & Proper,
to be appointed as Dirpctor, as per the Criteria prescribed by RBI.

g. Annual Performange Evaluation of the Board:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own
performance, the Directors individually (including Chairman). The feedback of the Independent
Directors on their reviéw of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole,
the performance of the Chairman of the Company was made based on the questionnaire to evaluate
the performances of Executive, Non-Executive Directors. Accordingly, Directors other than
Independent Directorg evaluated the performance of Independent Directors and the Board as a whole
based on the questionnaire to evaluate the performances of Independent Directors. The evaluation
framework for assessipg the performance of Directors comprised of the following key areas:

i. Structure and Composition of Board;

ii. Corporate Culture;
iii. Board Effectivenes
iv. Board Information;
v. Board Functioning;
vi. Performance Evaluftion

h. Key Managerial Pefsonnel (KMP):

During the year undef review, Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director, Ms. Kiran Agarwal Todi,
Chief Financial Officey, and Ms. Monika Thadeshwar (Variava), Company Secretary are the Key
Managerial Personnel [(KMP) of the Company. There were no changes that occurred in the KMP of the
Company.

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
The necessary details/Hisclosures of Ratio of Remuneration to each Director to the median employee’s

remuneration and otH
Companies (Appointm
Annexure-B with this

er details pursuant to the Section 197(12) of the Act and as per Rule 5 of the
ent and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed as an
report.

The statement conta
Companies (Appoint
separate annexure fo
Report and the Acco
same is open for insp
obtained by the Mem

POLICY ON DIRECTO
DUTIES:

The Company’s policy
Directors’ qualificatio
provided under Secti
appointment of Dire

ing particulars of employees as required under Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the
ent and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided in a
ing part of the Board’s Report. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the Board’s

ts are being sent to the Members excluding the aforesaid annexure and the
ction at the Registered Office of the Company. A copy of the statement may be
ers, by writing to the Company Secretary of the Company.

’ APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR

elating to the appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration,
s, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as
178(3) of the Act and the fit and proper’ criteria to be adopted at the time of
rs and continuingly, pursuant to the Non- Banking Financial Companies (NBFC)
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— Corporate Governance (Reserve Bank) Directions 2015 issued by the RBI and gdopted by the
Company is annexed as an Annexure-C with this report. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy

consisting of salient features are available on the Company's
https://www.ashvfinance.com/investor-relations/.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

website  at

The Company recognizes its role as a corporate citizen and endeavors to adopt good practices, and

standards of corporate governance through transparency in business ethics, acco
customers, government and various stakeholders for building the strong foundation

Thus, with constant aim to safeguard the interest of all stakeholders and in accordan

ntability to its
the Company.

with terms of

the RBI Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Systemically Importapt Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, thg Company had

framed and adopted the Corporate Governance Policy duly approved by the Board of

Directors of the

Company. The report on the Corporate Governance of the Company as of 31-Mar{2022 be and is
hereby annexed as an Annexure-D to this report. The said policy is available on the|website of the

Company at https://www.ashvfinance.com/investor-relations/.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met 5 times| The details of

meetings of the Board and its Committees held during the year are specified in

the Corporate

Governance Report of the Directors which forms parts of this report. The intervening ghp between the

two Board meetings was within the period prescribed under the Act.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

As per Section 135 o
Committee of the B

the Act, your Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Details of the constitytion of the CSR Committee are provided in the Corporate Governance Report

which forms parts of

CSR Committee has f
Policy in line with CSR
Board. During the ye

oird to support the Company in achieving the CSR objectives of the Company.

is report.

prmulated and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility
activities as defined in Schedule VIl of the Act, which has been approved by the
under review, there were no changes in the said policy recommended by CSR

a
Committee and appr[ved by the Board. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is available on the

Company’s website af]

The average net profit
in section 135 of the 4
the financial year und

Further, the Report on
Policy) Rules, 2014, fo

https://www.ashvfinance.com/investor-relations/.

for immediate previous financial year is below the threshold limit, as specified
\ct, your Company was not required to spend any amount towards CSR during
Brreview.

CSR activities as required under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Fming part of this Annual Report is hereby annexed as an Annexure -E.

RISKS MANAGEMENT|AND AREAS OF CONCERN:

The Company is exposed to various risks such as pandemic risk, credit risk, economic risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, technology risk, operational risk etc. The Company has in place a Board-approved
Credit Risk Policy, Asset Liability Management Policy, Environment, Social and Governance Risk Policy,
Liquidity Risk Management Policy for addressing the various risks associated with the Company’s

lending business and {reasury operations.

The Risk Committee

pf the Board constituted in accordance with the RBI guidelines has overall

responsibility for overseeing the Risk management activities of the Company. The Board periodically

reviews the risks and
defined framework.
Governance Report fa

uggests steps to be taken to control and mitigate the same through a properly
The details of the Risk Committee have been provided in the Corporate
rming part of this report.

DIRECTORS RESPONS|BILITY STATEMENT:

Your Directors, to th
explanations obtained

b best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and
by them and as required under Section 134(3)(c) of the Act state that:

(a) inthe preparatio

of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed

along with propef explanation relating to material departures; if any;

(b)

the Directors hagl selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made

judgments and egtimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the

Company for tha

(c) the Directors hag

period;
taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company

and for preventir
the Directors had
the Directors had
such internal fin
the Directors h
applicable laws

(d)
(e)

(f)

g and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
cial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and
devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

id that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:
The Company being Non-Banking Finance Company, maintenance of cost records as grescribed under
Section 148 of the Act is not applicable.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:
According to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. Parikh &
Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the
financial year ended 31-Mar-2022. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed and forrhing part of this
report as an Annexure-F.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL PQSITION OF THE
COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL
STATEMENT RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Cofnpany occurred
between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relates on|the date of this
report other than the Covid pandemic that has impacted the whole industry.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism in place to deal with instances of fraud and mi
any. The mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization
Employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the

management if
f Directors and
Chairman of the

Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board in exceptional cases. The Company alsp provides direct

access to the Chairman of the Audit and Compliance Committee on reporting issue}
interests of employees and the Company.

concerning the

We affirm that during the financial year 2021-22, no Employees or Directors were @lenied access to

the Audit and Compliance Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanis
the Company’s website at www.ashvfinance.com.

FAIR PRACTICE CODE:
Your Company has in place a Fair Practice Code (FPC), which includes guidelines o
conditions relating to the receipt of loan applications from prospective borrower

n is available on

h the terms and
and processing

thereof, sanction, monitoring and recovery of loans and other financial products b
etc., FPC is available on the Company’s website at https://www.ashvfinance.com/in

ing offered by it
stor-relations/.

KNOW YOUR CUSTOMER (KYC) GUIDELINES & ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING (AML) POLICY:

In terms of the circular(s) and direction(s) on KYC Norms and AML Measures issued by the RBI including
Know Your Customer (KYC) Direction, 2016, the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 and rules
made thereunder and as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors has adopted KYC & AML
Policy with an objective to prevent NBFCs being used, intentionally or unintentiopally by criminal
elements for money laundering activities by way of making reasonable efforts t¢ determine the
identity and beneficial ownership of accounts, source of funds, the nature of customgr’s business, the
reasonableness of operations in the account in relation to the customer’s business, dtc. which in turn
helps the Company to manage its risk prudently.

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 22-jun-
2021 revised its Know Your Customer (KYC) Guidelines & Anti-Money Laundering (AML) Policy to align
it with circulars and master direction issued by RBI. The KYC & AML Policy is gvailable on the
Company’s website at https://www.ashvfinance.com/investor-relations/.
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Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Commpany, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and
the reviews performed by management and the relevant board committees, including the Audit and
Compliance Committeg, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls
were adequate and eIctive during the FY 2021-22.

STATUTORY AUDITOR}:

nts of the Company for the financial year ended 31-Mar-2022 have been
prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of
the Act. The notes to the accounts referred to in Auditors Report are self-explanatory. The Statutory
Auditors’ Report on the financial statements for the financial year 2021-22 does not contain any
qualification, reservatipn, or adverse remark.

The financial stateme

In terms of Section 139 of the Act read with rules made thereunder, upon the recommendation of the
Members of the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board, the Board of Directors in its meeting
held on 22-Jun-2021 and the shareholders in its meeting held on 28-Jul-2021 appointed Batliboi &
Purohit, Chartered Acdountants, having ICAl Firm Registration No. 101048W as a Statutory Auditors
of the Company to hdld office for a tenure of 5 years starting from the conclusion of 23" Annual

General Meeting till t

FRAUD REPORTED BY
During the year under

conclusion of the 28" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

UDITORS:
eview, neither the Statutory Auditor nor Secretarial Auditor have reported any

instances of frauds c
Compliance Committe
of which need to be m

pmmitted in the Company by its officers or employees to the Audit and
e of the Board and the Board of Directors under Section 143 of the Act, details
entioned in this report.

DETAILS OF ADEQUA(
STATEMENTS:

The Company has devised a proper system of internal financial control which is commensurate with
the size and nature of the Business. Our Co-sourced Internal Auditor i.e., Protiviti India Member
Private Limited (Protiyiti), Chartered Accountants, monitors and evaluates internal audit function,

Y OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL

corrective action in th
on half yearly basis to

Also, they have also g
has, in all material res|
internal financial cont
based on internal conti
essential components
Controls over Financia

INTERNAL CONTROL S}

ir respective areas and thereby strengthens the controls and reports the same
he Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board.

ven their Report on the Internal Financial Controls stating that the Company
pects, an internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
ols over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022
ol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
pf internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

YSTEMS:

The Company has an internal control system that is commensurate with the size, scale and complexity

of its operations. The

Co-Sourced Internal Auditor monitors the efficiency of the internal control

systems in the Company, compliance with operating systems/accounting procedures and policies of

the Company. Significa
and Compliance Comim

nt audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit
ittee of the Board.
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COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
The Board of Directors of the Company have devised proper systems to ensure comy
provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Sd
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE INSY
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC):
During the year under review, no applications were filed against the Company by i
operational creditors.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS (
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERA
FUTURE:
During the year under review, there were no significant or material orders passed by 4
court or tribunal, which impacts the going concern status of the Company.

liance with the
cretary of India

DLVENCY AND

iny financial or

PR COURTS OR
TIONS IN THE

ny regulator or

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EJARNINGS AND

OUTGO:

The information as required under Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding the conversation of energy, technology absorption i
as the Company is not carrying on any manufacturing activity during the year.

the Companies
not applicable

The particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year unde
under:

Particulars

(Rs. in lakhs)
2020-22 2020-
_7.52

Total Expenditure in Foreign Currency

review are as

21

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

According to Section 186(11)(a) of the Act read with the Rule 11(2) of the Compani¢
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and any amendment thereto from time to time, t
guarantee given or security provided in the ordinary course of business by an NBFC
RBI are exempt from the applicability of provisions of Section 186 of the Act. Hence, p3
loans and guarantees have not to be disclosed in this report. The details of the |
particulars of current investments and non-current investments are furnished u
Accounts of financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES:

s (Meetings of
he loans made,
registered with
rticulars of the
pan made and
hder Notes to

During the year under review, all related party contracts/arrangements/transactionys were placed
before the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board for its approval and statemept of all related
party transactions carried out was placed before the Audit and Compliance Committeq and the Board
of Directors on periodic basis. The Company has entered into certain transactions/corjtracts with the
related parties falling within the provisions of Section 188 of the Act and rules made thereunder. The
Company also has obtained Omnibus approval for the same, accordingly, the particulars of material
Contracts or Arrangements made with related parties pursuant to Section 188 of the Ad, in Form AOC-
2 as prescribed under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to Accounts of Companies under the
Act as on 31-Mar-2021, is annexed as an Annexure-G with this report.

11
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The details of the relat
Financial Statements. 1

bd party transactions are disclosed in the notes on accounts, forming part of
he shareholders may kindly refer to the same.

The policy on Related
been uploaded on th
https://www.ashvfina

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL

Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company has
website of the Company. The same is available on the company’s website at
ce.com/investor-relations/.

ETURN:

According to the provisions of Section 134(3})(a) and Section 92(3) of the Act, the Annual Return of the

Company in the

rescribed Form MGT-7 is available on the Company’s website at

https://www.ashvfinahce.com/investor-relations/.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT

VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

During the year under review, the Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate

Company.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:
Your Company is a n
Company has not accq
the Companies (Accej
non-acceptance of de
to deposits covered
with Chapter V of the

MANAGEMENT DISC

pn-deposit taking Company (NBFC-ND-SI). During the year under review, the
pted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 and 76 of the Act read with
htance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. The Company has passed a resolution for the
posits from the public. Hence, the requirement for furnishing the details relating

I.Ander Chapter V of the Act or the details of deposits that are not in compliance

Act is not applicable.

JSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

The detailed report ¢
with this report.

pn Management Discussion and Analysis is hereby annexed as an Annexure-H

REPORTING UNDER
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT 2013:

Your Company recoghizes its responsibility and continues to provide a safe working environment for
women, free from sgxual harassment and discrimination and to boost their confidence, morale and
performance. The Campany has constituted an Internal Complaint Committee under Section 4 of the
Sexual Harassment ¢f Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 to
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment from all offices of the Company. The
Company has also aflopted the Policy on Anti-Sexual Harassment in line with the provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder. A|l employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under
this policy. To build awareness in this area, the Company is continuously providing training to
employees of the Company and has placed extract of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 at the entrance of all offices of the Company along
with contact details pf the Members of Internal Complaints Committee.

THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,

During the financial
which has been reso

year 2021-22, the Company had received 1 complaint on sexual harassment,
ved immediately with corrective actions.

CREDIT RATING:

Your Company’s financial discipline and prudence is reflected in the strong credit rating ascribed by
Credit Rating Agencies as under:

12
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Instrument Date of i i Amount (Rs.
Rating In Lakhs.)
Obtained

Proposed Principal 25-Jun- India Rating IND PP-MLD BBB emr/ 4,500.00

Protected Market Linked 2021 & Research Stable

Debenture (PP-MLD) L e S R RIS _

Bank Loan 25-Jun- India Rating BBB Stable 5; 000.00
2021 & Research

Long Term 29-Oct- CARE CARE BBB; Stable 2,000.00 |

 Bank Facilites 2021 R k|

| Bank Fanllty 20-Dec- Acuite Acuite BBB+/Stable 5,000.00 |
2021 - - :

Non-Convertible 13-Apr- Acuite Acuite BBB+/Stable 10,000.00

Debenpures. ¥ AT A T ST e P pe Ry R o |

Nun Convertible 14-Apr- CARE CARE BBB Stable 8,000.00

| Debenture 2022 i

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO:
Your Company is well capitalized and has a capital adequacy ratio of 28% as of 31-Mar-2022 as against
the minimum regulatory requirement of 15.00 % for non-deposit accepting NBFCs.

LISTING OF SECURITIES:
Non-convertible Debentures of the Company are listed on BSE Limited and your Company has paid
required listing fees to BSE Limited.

RBI GUIDELINES:
Your Company is a Non-Deposit Taking Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-
ND-SI) and has complied with and continues to comply with all applicable regulations|and directions
issued by RBI from time to time.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
Your Board of Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, busingss associates,
consultants, and various Government Authorities including RBI for the continued suppgrt extended to
your Company during the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledge |gratefully the
shareholders for their support and confidence in the Company, its team, and customefs.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SD/- SD/-
Vineet Chandra Rai NikesH Kumar Sinha
Chairman Managing Director
(DIN: 00606290) (DIN: 08268336)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 05-May-2022
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EMPLOYEE STOCK ORTION PLAN (ESOP)

Presently IntelleGroyw Employee Stock Option, 2018 (IntelleGrow ESOP 2018) is in force. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of the Company administer and monitor the
Employee Stock Optipn Scheme of the Company in accordance with applicable law.

The details of the Employee Stock Option Scheme as per Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital

and Debentures) Rulés, 2014 are as follows:
__Ii'art__icul_ars P e 31-Mar-2021

the beginning 6,12,666

b. Total Options gfanted 10,12,666

f._Options lapsed

h. Variation in terins of options, if any IntelleGrow Employee Stock Option,
2018 was amended pursuant to the
resolution passed in the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee
Meeting and Board of Directors
Meeting held on 22-Jun-2021 and
Shareholders of the Company in its
meeting held on 28-Jul-2021 by
increasing ESOP Pool size by 6,00,000
ESOPs with same terms and conditions
as mentioned in the scheme.

j.  Total number o pions in force 9,97,666

a) Key anagerial Personnel . 2,06,000

Name of Employee Options
Granted

c) Identified employees who were granted options, Nil
during any one ear, equal to or exceeding one percent
of the issued cdpital (excluding outstanding warrants
and conversions) of the company at the time of grant
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Disclosure on Managerial Remuneration and other details

Remuneration details under rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended for the financial year ended 31-Mar-20
Name of Director/Key Managerial Personnel Ratio of remuneration % Increase in
of director to median remuneration in
remuneration of the
employees financial year

frbedipes L

Ms. Suma Swaminathan — Nominee Director _ ] -

C. Key Managerial Personnel [

e

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha — Managing Director - _27

nika Thaeshwar (Va 'va} — Company Secretary

. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the
financial year other than Managing Director

Number of permanent eployees on the rolls of the Company as on 31-
Mar-2022

F. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the pergentile increase
in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if fthere are any
exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:
Average percentile increases in the salaries of employees other than the managerjal personnel in
the last financial year is 11%.

Average percentile increase in the managerial remuneration is 20%.

Annual increments, are decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee|with the salary
scale approved by the members.

G. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:
The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
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Lire on Managerial Remuneration and Other

The statement conta
with Rule 5(2) of the
2014:

Disclosure on Managerial Remuneration and other details

ning particulars of employees as required under section 197(12) of the Act read
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,

a. if employed throyighout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in

the aggregate, w

s not less than Rs.1,02,00,000/-

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sin
Particulars

=

4 Qualificatio

ha — Managing Director
Details

bn received I Rs.1,92,50,000/- (inclusive of perquisites)

Post Graduate diploma in Forestry Management from
Indian Institute of Forest Management, Bhopal and
Bachelor of Science in Mathematics from St. Xavier’s,
Kolkata.

and Experience

Nikesh brings rich experience in banking and finance and as
the Head of Medium Enterprise Group at Axis Bank
managed assets worth INR 28,000 Crore {US $ 4 Billion).

Nikesh was one of the early joiners at Axis Bank and
completed over 20 years of service with the bank. Some of
his roles at Axis Bank include a stint as Deputy CEO of the

%f equity

Singapore Operation.

hares held 0.1

b. if employed for g

part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that

year, at a rate whjich, in the aggregate, was not less than Rs.8,50,000/- per month - Nil

c. if employed throdighout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that

year which, in the
of that drawn by

aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess
the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself

or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares

of the Company.
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ASHV FINANCE LIMITED

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Introduction:
In pursuance of the Company’s policy to consider human resources as its invaluab

equitable remuneration to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)and Employeed

to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the com
of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, this policy on nomination and remuner
KMP and Senior Management has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuner
(“NRC”) and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Composition of Committee:
1.

out of which not less than one-half shall be independent directors.

2. The Chairperson of the Company (whether executive or non-executive) may bd
member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair the g

Objective:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance

of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Guidelineg

le assets, to pay
of the company,
ny and in terms

;fi)on of Directors,

htion Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall consist of three or more non-exXecutive directors

appointed as a
ommittee.

with Section 178
of Reserve Bank

of India. The objective of this policy is to lay down a framework in relation to remunerdtion of directors,

KMP, senior management personnel and other employees.

The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:

1.1. To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors,
Management.

1.2. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and in|
director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration d
and other employees.

1.3. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board.

1.4. To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necesg
Board for further evaluation of the Board.

1.5. To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors,
Management.

1.6. To provide to KMP and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effq

KMP and Senior

dependence of a

f Directors, KMP

ary report to the

KMP and Senior

rt, performance,
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kion and Remuneration Policy

dedication and

1.7. To retain, mo

managerial pes
1.8.
1.9. To assist the Bd

1.10

Applicability:

a) Directors (Executi
b) KMP

c) Senior Manageme

Definitions:
“Act” means the Com

“Board” means Board

achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

ivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented
sons and create competitive advantage.

To develop a sficcession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.

ard in fulfilling responsibilities.

To Implement gnd monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance.

ye and Non-Executive)

int Personnel

panies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended from time to time.

of Directors of the Company.

“Directors” mean Dirdctors of the Company.

“Key Managerial Pers
i Managing Direg
Director;
Chief Financial (
Company Secret
such other offics

]

.

“Senior Managemen
members of its core
management one leve

Unless the context oth
but defined in the Co
respectively assigned

o

lonnel” means
for, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time

fficer;
ary; and
br as may be prescribed.

I’ means Senior Management means the personnel of the company who are

management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of
| below the executive directors, including the functional heads.

erwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein
panies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning
them therein.

Policy for Appointme

1. Appointment Crite

a) The Committee sH
the person for apg

It and Removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management:

ia and Qualifications:

all identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of
ointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the
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Board his / her appointment.

b) The Committee shall undertake a process of due diligence to determine the suitabili

ty of the person

for appointment/continuing to hold appointment as a director on the Boar§i, based upon

qualification, expertise, track record, integrity and other “fit and proper’ criteria.

c) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the ppsition he / she
is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification,

expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the con

gerned position.

d) The Company shall not appaint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director
who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person hold{:g this position

may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of sharehold

special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice fi

indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

e) The Company shall appoint Independent/Non-Executive Directors nominated to the
between 35 to 70 years of age.

rs by passing a
r such motion

Board should be

f) The Company shall obtain necessary information and declaration from the prpposed/existing
directors as per the format provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and Guidglines issued by

Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

g) The Company shall obtained annually as on 31* March a simple declaration from ti.te Directors the

information already provided has not undergone change and where there is any ¢
details are furnished by them forthwith.

ange, requisite

h) The Company shall ensure in public interest that the nominated/elected directors expcute the deeds
of covenants in the Format provided under the Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank offIndia from time

to time.
2. Term / Tenure:
The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, M

or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointme
earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director: {

b) Independent Director:

naging Director
t shall be made

e An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the
Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company

and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

« NoIndependent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of
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5 years each, bu
years of ceasing
not, during the s:
other capacity, e

At the time of ap
which such Indej
Director and thr¢
Whole-time Dire

3. Evaluation:

such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three
to become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall
id period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any
ther directly or indirectly.

pointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on
pendent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent
e listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a
ctor of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

The Committee sh3ll carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior

Management Person

4. Removal:

nel at regular interval (yearly).

Due to reasons for anjy disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules and

regulations there ung
removal of a Directo
of the said Act, rules

5. Retirement:

er, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing,
-, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance
and regulations.

The Director, KMP a
Act and the prevaili
KMP, Senior Mana
attaining the retire

Policy for Remunera

1. Remuneration to
Management Pers

The Remuneration/ (
be governed as per

d Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the

policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director,
ment Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after
nt age, for the benefit of the Company.

ion to Directors/KMP/Senior Management Personnel:-

Managing/Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior
pnnel:

ompensation/ Commission etc. to be paid to Director / Managing Director etc. shall
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other

enactment for the time being in force.

2. Remuneration to

The Non-Executive In

Non- Executive / Independent Director:

dependent Director may receive remuneration / compensation / commission as per

the provisions of Conpanies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as

provided under Com
being in force.

panies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time
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Duties in Relation to Nomination Matters:
The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:
Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and mgmbers of Senior

Management and reviewing its effectiveness;

Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a
appointment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act;

Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement

Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;

formal letter of

by rotation;

Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing the

plan;

Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of the

Company’s performance from business and compliance perspective;

Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the cont{nuation in office

of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an E
as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their servic

Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the

Recommend any necessary changes to the Board;

Scrutinize the declarations received from directors and based on the information

signed declaration, the Committee shall decide on the acceptance or otherwise
where considered necessary;

Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board.

Duties In Relation To Remuneration Matters:
The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:

Considering and determining the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance
in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and m
of the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate all
remuneration of the members of the Board.

kecutive Director
e contract.

ICommittee;

provided in the
bf the Directors,

and also bearing
btivate members
elements of the

Approving the remuneration of the Senior Management including KMP of the Company maintaining
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term perforrhance objectives

appropriate to the working of the Company.
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¢ Delegating any oflits powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee.
e Considering any dther matters as may be requested by the Board.

Review and Amendmient:
i.  The NRC or tHe Board may review the Policy as and when it deems necessary.

ii. The NRC may issue the guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manual in
supplement gnd better implementation to this Policy, if it thinks necessary.

ii.  This Policy may be amended or substituted by the NRC or by the Board as and when required

and also by the Compliance Officer where there is any statutory changes necessitating the
change in the|paolicy.

ok ok Rk Rk ko ok ok ok
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COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Ashv is committed to the adoption of best practices of Corporate Governance and ity adherence in
true spirit, at all times. The Company’s governance practices are a product of self-desire, reflecting
the culture of trusteeship that is deeply ingrained in our value system and reflected in our strategic
thought process. The Corporate Governance framework of the Company is based on an effective and
independent Board, separation of the Board’s supervisory role from the Executive Manggement team
and constitution of the Board Committees, as required under applicable laws. The Bpard functions
either as a full Board or through various Committees constituted to oversee specific fupctions.

The Executive Management provides the Board detailed reports on the Company’s pgrformance on
monthly basis. During the year under review, your Company has adopted a Board apprdved Corporate
Governance Policy. The details of compliance with Corporate Governance requiremgnts during the
financial year ended 31-Mar-2022 (“financial year under review”) are as follows:
1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Board of your Company comprises of combination of Executive, Non-Executive
Independent Directors. The Board is at the core of our corporate governanc¢ practice and
oversees and ensures that the Management serves and protects the long term gnd short-term
interest of all our stakeholders. The Board has formulated various committees for handling
specific responsibilities under the applicable laws i.e.,, Audit and Complianji Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Risk Committee, Asset Liability| Management
Committee, Corporate Governance & Executive Committee, Corporate Social|Responsibility

Committee, IT Strategy Committee, Product, Process, Credit Policy and Griev3nce Redressal
Committee.

, Nominee and

1.a. Composition: As of 31-Mar-2022, the Board of Directors of the Company (“the Boa
of 8 (Eight) Directors, which includes 2 (Two) Independent Directors, 5 (Five)
Directors and 1 (One) Managing Director. The Chairman of the Board is a Non-Exeq

Out of 8 (Eight) Directors, 3 (Three) Directors on the Board are Women Directors.

rd”) comprises
INon-Executive
utive Director.

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), the Directors suljmit necessary

disclosures regarding the positions held by them on the Board of other public
Companies, from time to time. All Independent Directors on the Board are

Directors. The maximum tenure of the Independent Directors is in compliance w

the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of in
mentioned under Section 149(6) of the Act. As per the declarations receive

hnd/or private
Non-Executive
ith the Act. All

jependence as

none of the

Directors serve as an Independent Director in more than seven listed Companies. T|
of the present Directors on the Board is available on the Company’
https://www.ashvfinance.com/about-us/.

he brief profile
5 website at

The details of the Directors of the Company with regard to outside Directorship|held as of 31-

Mar-2022 are as follow:

No. of Outside
Directorship(s)

Name of the Director

Category

Rakesh éeu;a.ri 3
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Ms. Anuraha Ra

Mr. Anurag Agra 3l
Mr. Sagar Thakar

1.b.

1.c.

Non-Executive
Directors and
been approved
the Company d
any of Directors|

01983

achandran

Non-Executive

02385780

-

CEXecC

09481269 Additional Director

Directors Compensation and Disclosures: Sitting fees paid to Independent
y the Board. No sitting fees were paid to Non-Executive Nominee Directors of

ring the financial year under review. No commission was recommended/ paid to
during the financial year under review.

tFn-Executive Directors for attending Meetings of the Board / Committees has

Board’s Functioping and Procedure: The Company’s Board plays a pivotal role in ensuring good

governance ang
accountabilities
The Members d

functioning of the Company. The Board’s role, functions, responsibilities and
are well defined. All relevant information is regularly placed before the Board.
f the Board have complete freedom to express their opinion and decisions are

taken after detdiled discussions.

The Board meef

s at least once in every quarter to review the quarterly results and other items

on the agenda
requirements o

5 (Five) Board
two Meetings
Meetings held
Directors prese

Date of Board

17-Jan-2

The Directors or]
and bring a wid
complete acces:

and additional Meetings are held to address specific needs and business
the Company.

eetings were held during the financial year under review. The gap between any
as not more than 120 (One Hundred Twenty) days. The details of the Board
Huring the financial year under review, dates on which held and number of
t are as follows:

Meeting  Board Strength  No. of Directors Present

D22

the Board are professionals, having expertise in their respective functional areas
e range of skills and experience to the Board. The Board has an unfettered and
 to any information within the Company. Members of the Board have complete

freedom to expfess their views on agenda items and can discuss any matter at the Meeting with

the permission
which is requir

provides directi

bf the Chairperson. The Board periodically reviews all the relevant information,
ed to be placed before it and in particular reviews and approves corporate

n and exercises appropriate control to ensure that the Company is managed in

strategies, busiEess plans, annual budgets, projects and capital expenditure, etc. The Board

a manner that f

The details of af

under review a

Company held d

Ifils stakeholder’s aspirations and societal expectations.

tendance of each Director at the Board Meetings held during the financial year
hd at the previous Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of the
n 28-Jul-2021, through video conferencing are as follows:
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Mr. Rakesh Rewari No

Nil

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran No

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha

*Appointed w.e.f. 09-Feb-2022

1.d. Code of Conduct: The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for the Board
Senior Management Personnel of the Company (“the Code”). The Code is applid
Board Members and Senior Management of the Company. All the Board Mem

Nil

Members and
fable to all the
rs and Senior

Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code during the financial year

under review.

. Performance Evaluation of the Board: A formal evaluation mechanism has bed

evaluating the performance of the Board, the Committees thereof, individual Di

n adopted for
ctors and the

Chairman of the Board. The evaluation is based on criteria which include, among others, providing
strategic perspective, Chairmanship of Board and Committees, attendance, timp devoted and
preparedness for the Meetings, quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow pf information
between the Board Members and the Management, contribution at the Meefings, effective
decision-making ability, role and effectiveness of the Committees. The Dire
questionnaires providing feedback on functioning of the Board, Committees and
Board.

1.f. Separate Meeting of Independent Directors:
As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules

made thereunder as amended from time to time, one Meeting of Independent Directors was held

during the year on 30-Mar-2022. The Meeting was conducted to enable Indepen
discuss matters relating to Company’s affairs and put forth their views without t
Non-Independent Directors and members of the Management.

In this Meeting, the Independent Directors reviewed the performance of No
Directors and the Board as a whole. They have also reviewed the performance of
of the Company and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow

ent Directors,
he presence of

h-independent
[ the Chairman
bf information

between the Management and the Board and its Committees which is necessary for the Board to

effectively and reasonably perform and discharge their duties.
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2. COMMITTEE OF|THE BOARD:
During the year|under review, no Committees were constituted/re-constituted.

The composition and number of meetings held during the year under review of the above said
committees are fas under:

Sl. Name of the Composition of Committees Number of Date of Meetings
No. Committees during the FY 2022 Meetings held held during the
_Meetings R SO during the FY 2022 FY 2022

2.  Nomination Mr. Rakesh Rewari 4 22-jun-2021

and Ms. Suma Swaminathan 26-Aug-2021
Remuneratio Mr. Anurag Agrawal 28-Oct-2021
Committee Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar 08-Feb-2022

4. Risk Mr. Rakesh Rewari 4 13-May-2021
Committee Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran 26-Aug-2021

Mr. Anurag Agrawal 28-Oct-2021

. Nikesh Kumar Sinha 08-Feb-2022

IT Strategy Mr. Rakesh Rewari 26-Aug-2021
Committee Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran 08-Feb-2022
Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha

8 Corporate Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai 11 28-May-2021
Governance Mr. Anurag Agrawal 30-Jul-2021
and Executivg Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha 30-Sep-2021
Committee 26-Oct-2021

11-Nov-2021

08-Dec-2021
16-Dec-2021
24-Jan-2022
10-Feb-2022
17-Mar-2022
28-Mar-2022
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Details on the role and composition of these Committees, including the number of meetings held
during the financial year and the related attendance, are provided below:

1. Audit and Compliance Committee and its Composition:
Audit and Compliance Committee’s compaosition, quorum, powers, role ahd scope are in
accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 a*d Reserve Bank
of India Master Direction No. RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 DNBR. PD. 008/0310.119/2016-17
dated September 01, 2016 on Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically| Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directjons, 2016.

As of 31-Mar-2022, Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board comprises of following
members:

a. Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director;
b. Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar, Independent Director;
c. Ms. Suma Swaminathan, Nominee Director

Mr. Rakesh Rewari is the Chairman of Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board of the
Company. Ms. Monika Thadeshwar (Variava), Company Secretary of the Company, acts as
Secretary of the Audit and Compliance Committee.

The Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board reviews the reports, which are to be
submitted with the Board of Directors with respect to auditing and accounting matters. It
also supervises the Company’s internal control and financial reporting prodess. Further, all
the recommendations made by the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board have been
taken up by the Board.

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) is formed in comgliance with the
provisions of the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Reserve Bank|of India Master
Direction No. RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 djted September
01, 2016 on Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Nor-Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

As of 31-Mar-2022, Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Boafd comprises of
following members:

Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director;

Ms. Suma Swaminathan, Nominee Director;

Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Director;

Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar, Independent Director

oo ow

Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar is the Chairman of Nomination and Remuneratign Committee of
the Board of the Company. Ms. Monika Thadeshwar (Variava), Company $ecretary of the
Company, acts as Secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committep.

The terms of reference of this Committee are in line with the regulatofy requirements
mandated in the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder as amended from time to
time. The scope of the Committee includes an annual review of the| Nomination &
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3.

Remuneratiop Policy, recommend to the Board appointment & removal of the Directors,

approve per]
qualifications
paid to the
consider givi

Asset Liability

formance evaluation framework, formulate the criteria for determining
positive attributes and independence of a director, to review remuneration

jmployees & directors is as per the Nomination & Remuneration Policy and

g stock options to the employees in the form of equity shares of the Company.

f Management Committee:

This Committge is constituted in compliance with the provisions of RBI Master Direction No.

RBI/DNBR/201
NBFC-SI Non-
Company has
disclosures tg

6-17/45 DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 on
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company Directions, 2016. The
a Board approved Asset Liability Management Policy in place and required
the effect are made from time to time. The Asset Liability Management

Committee sT:[I monitor the asset liability gap and strategies action to mitigate the risks

associated wi

As of 31-Mar

the business of the Company.

2022, Asset Liability Management Committee of the Board comprises of

following members:

a. Ms. Anur

b. Mr. Nikes
c. Mr. Rakes
d. Ms. Suma
Members sel

Committee of

ha Ramachandran, Nominee Director;
Kumar Sinha, Managing Director;

h Rewari, Independent Director
Swaminathan, Nominee Director

pct among themselves as a Chairman of the Asset Liability Management
the Board of the Company. Ms. Monika Thadeshwar (Variava), Company

Secretary of tlhe Company, acts as Secretary of the Asset Liability Management Committee.

The terms of
key responsib
structural liqul
Company and
funding mixes

eference of this Committee are in line with the regulatory requirements. The
lities of the Committee include review & management of liquidity gaps and
dity of the Company, review & management of interest rate sensitivity of the
develop a view on future direction on interest rate movements & decide on

Risks Manag
Risk Commi

ment and Areas of Concern:
e is constituted in compliance with the provisions of RBI Master Direction No.

RBI/DNBR/20J16-17/45 DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 on
NBFC-SI Non{Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company Directions, 2016 which
monitors the(risk management strategy of the Company. In order to ensure best governance
practices, thg Company has established risk management process for each line of its business

and operati

s. These processes have been implemented through the specific policies

adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time. Nevertheless, entire

processes ar
risks and take

As of 31-Mar

subjected to robust independent internal audit review to arrest any potential
corrective actions.

2022, the Risk Committee of the Board comprises of following members:

Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director;

Ms. Anurddha Ramachandran, Nominee Director;
Mr. Anur% Agrawal, Director;

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director

a0 ow
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Members select among themselves as a Chairman of the Risk Committee of 1
Company. Ms. Monika Thadeshwar (Variava), Company Secretary of the C4
Secretary of the Risk Committee.

The Risk Committee shall ensure that the risks associated with the business/fu
Company are identified, controlled and mitigated and shall also lay dd

he Board of the
bmpany, acts as

nctioning of the
wn procedures

regarding managing and mitigating the risks through integrated risk management systems,

strategies and mechanisms.

. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

As per Section 135 of the Act, your Board has constituted a Corporate Soci
(CSR) Committee of the Board to support the Company in achieving the CSR {
Company.

As of 31-Mar-2022, the CSR Committee of the Board is made up of the follow

Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar, Independent Director;
Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran, Nominee Director;
Ms. Suma Swaminathan, Nominee Director;

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director

a0 oow

Members select among themselves as a Chairman of the Corporate Socid
Committee of the Board of the Company. Ms. Monika Thadeshwar (Var
Secretary of the Company, acts as Secretary of the Corporate Social Responsib

8l Responsibility
bbjectives of the

ng members:

)| Responsibility
ava), Company
ility Committee.

The terms of reference of this Committee are in line with the regulatory re
terms of reference of the Committee includes to formulate and recommend
Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company
Schedule Vii of the Companies Act, 2013, to recommend the amount of ex
incurred on the CSR activities and to institute a transparent monitoring
implementation of the CSR activities.

. Information Technology Strategy Committee:

Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee was formed as per the p
Master Direction No. RBI/DNBS/2016-17/53 DNBS.PPD.N0.04/66.15.001/201]
08, 2017 pertaining to “Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sed

As of 31-Mar-2022, the IT Strategy Committee of the Board is made up ¢
members:

a. Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director
b. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran, Nominee Director, Chief Technology Offic
c. Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director, Chief Information Officer

Mr. Rakesh Rewari is the Chairman of IT Strategy Committee of the Board {
Ms. Monika Thadeshwar (Variava), Company Secretary of the Company, act
the IT Strategy Committee.

The terms of reference of this Committee are in line with the regulatory re
key responsibilities of the IT Strategy Committee include approving IT sf

uirements. The
the Board CSR
t as specified in
penditure to be
mechanism for

rovisions of RBI
b-17 dated June
for”.

bf the following

of the Company.
b as Secretary of

huirements. The
rategy & policy
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documents &
in place, ascer
that the IT del
& benefits & t
determine the
for sourcing &

ensuring that the management has put an effective strategic planning process
kaining that management has implemented processes & practices that ensure
vers value to the business, ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks
heir budgets are acceptable, monitoring the method that management uses to
IT resources needed to achieve strategic goals & provide high-level direction
use of IT resources and ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining

Company's growth & becoming aware about exposure towards IT risks and controls.

During the VT

Accountants h
Information T¢
Compliance Cq

r under review, Aneja Management Consultant Private Limited, Chartered
ve done Information System Audit in accordance with RBI Master Direction on
chnology Framework for NBFCS and the same was placed before the Audit and
mmittee of the Board and the Board of Directors for their review and noting.

Product, Proc

ss, Credit Policy & Grievance Redressal Committee:

This Committde was constituted with an objective of review from time to time the suite of

products run

norms, custo
Company and
products can

the company covering its fulfillment process within the regulatory compliance
er service quality, viability and profitability within the objectives of the
approve new products and rolling out business in new geographies in which
be rolled out, review and recommend credit policy framework in line with

stipulated guidelines of the Board, customer service initiatives, overseeing the functioning of

the customer
customer serv|

As of 31-Mar-,

Mr. Rakes

service council and evolving innovative measures for enhancing the quality of
ce and improvement in the overall satisfaction level of customers etc.

2022, the Committee of the Board is made up of the following members:

n Rewari, Independent Director;

Ms. Suma
Mr. Nikes

op oo

waminathan, Nominee Director ;
Kumar Sinha, Managing Director

Ms. Anutha Ramachandra, Nominee Director;

Members seldct among themselves as a Chairman of the Committee of the Board of the

Company. Ms|

Monika Thadeshwar (Variava), Company Secretary of the Company, acts as

Secretary of the said Committee.

Corporate Gd

vernance and Executive Committee:

The Corporat
of the Board
consideratior

As of 31-Mar-3
up of the follo

Governance and Executive Committee serves as an administrative committee
facilitate approval of certain operational corporate actions that do not require
by the full Board.

022, the Corporate Governance and Executive Committee of the Board is made
wing members:

a. Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai, Chairman & Director;
b. Mr. NikesiLKumar Sinha, Managing Director;
¢c. Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Director

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai is Chairman of the Committee of the Board of the Company. Ms.

Monika Thade
said Committe

shwar (Variava), Company Secretary of the Company, acts as Secretary of the
e.
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In addition to the aforesaid committees, the Company has constituted the Credit Com

Mmittee, Internal

Recommendation Committee, Asset Liability Management Committee of the Manag

ment, Banking

Operations Committee, Complaints Committee, Whistle Blower Committee within thé powers of the

Board of Directors and/or CXOs in accordance with the Shareholders Agreem
operations of the functioning of the Company.

3. VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

t for smooth

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism to deal with instance of fraud and mismanggement, if any.

The mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization

Directors and

Employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board in the exceptional cases. The¢ Company also

provides direct access to the Chairman of the Audit and Compliance Committ
issues concerning the interests of employees and the Company.

e on reporting

We affirm that during the financial year 2021-22, no Employee or Directors was (1enied access to

the Audit and Compliance Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mecha
on the Company’s website at https://www.ashvfinance.com/investor-relations/.

4. GENERAL MEETINGS:

ism is available

During the year under review, 4 (Four) General Meetings were held to transact the following business

as mentioned in the below table:

Annual General Meeting:

Transacted

The Company has conducted the said meeting in compliance with applicable provij
regulations of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with circular No. 20/201

ions, rules and
0 and 02/2021

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 05-May-2020 and 13-Jan-2021 respectiyely.
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21-Jan-2022  5:00|pm Held

The Company has cofducted the said meetings in compliance with applicable provisions, rules and

through e Approval for Addendum No.5 to the Sourcing

Video- and Servicing Agreement dated 08-May-2018
Conferencing entered with Tribetech Private Limited
(VC)/other

Audio-Visual

Means (OAVM)

regulations of the Comipanies Act, 2013 and in accordance to circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate

Affairs on time to time.

5.

5.a.

5.b.

B.c;

Other Disclosures:

Related Party Transactions:

During the finangial year, the Company had entered into related party transactions which were
on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. All related party transactions
have been approjed by the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Company.

The details of thq related party transactions are disclosed in the notes on accounts, forming part
of Financial Statgments. The shareholders may kindly refer to the same.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company
has been uploaded on the website of the Company. The same is available on the company’s
website at https/www.ashvfinance.com/investor-relations/.

Performance Evaluation criteria for Independent Directors: The Directors other than

Independent Dirgctors of the Company evaluate the performance of Independent Directors on

following criterialas to how an Independent Director:

1. Invests time ih understanding the Company and its unique requirements;

2. Brings in extefnal knowledge and perspective to the table for discussions at the Meetings;

3. Expresses hisf her views on the issues discussed at the Board; and

4. Keeps himself/ herself current on areas and issues that are likely to be discussed at the
Board level

Investor Grievange:

10
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The Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The CSR Policy of the Company is guiding document to suitably allocate, manage and qupervise prescribed

CSR funds of the Company. It includes CSR activities towards social and economic ¢
Company, Budget, Project identification, monitoring, review etc. The CSR Policy of 1
with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, CSR Rules and Schedule VIl of the Com

2. Composition of CSR Committee as on 31-Mar-2022:
The CSR Committee of the Board is responsible for overseeing the execution of the Cg
The CSR Committee comprises of one Independent Director, two Nominee Direg
Director as on 31-Mar-2022.

Hevelopment of the
he Company is line
banies Act, 2013.

impany’s CSR Policy.
tors and Managing

Number of
meetings of CSR
Committee held
during the year

Designation / Nature of
Directorship

Name of Director

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran Nominee Director

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha Managing Director
3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR project
Board are disclosed on the website of the Company: Composition of CSR C
Policy is uploaded on the link here https://www.ashvfinance.com/investor-re

Number of
meetings of CSR
Committee
attended during
the: year

s approved by the
bmmittee and CSR

ations/

Since, the average net profit for immediate previous financial year is below the

b threshold limit, as

specified in section 135 of the Act, your Company was not required to spend any gmount towards CSR

during the financial year under review. Thus, No CSR projects recommended by
of the Board and the Board of Directors of the Company.

of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules,
(attach the report): Not Applicable

. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required f|
financial year, if any: Not Applicable

. Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) (2018-19, 2019-20
1,99,47,236/-

the CSR Committee

. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuince of sub-rule (3)

2014, ifapplicable

of the Companies
pr set-off for the

and 2020-21): Rs.
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Ms. Monika Thade
purpose of the SH
Company.

shwar, Company Secretary of the Company is the Compliance Officer for the
Bl Listing Regulations and also acting as Grievance Redressal Officer of the

In case of any quefy, stakeholders can send email on monika.thadeshwar@ashvfinance.com

As of 31-Mar-202]

Website Disclosu:les:

All important inf
results, are posted

The half yearly

, there were no investor complaints pending.

5.d. General Shareholgers Information:
Company Registrgtion details:
The Company is based in Mumbai and operates in 31 geographies at present.
CIN: U65910MH1998PLC333546
RBI Regn. No.: B-18.02376
6.

rmation relating to the Company and its performance, including financial
on the website of the Company https://www.ashvfinance.com

flancial results of the company are published in the leading newspaper viz.
Business Standar

XXX X=X =X =X X=X -X-X-X
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7. Computation of CSR Obligation:
(a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Nil
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years.: Nil
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).: Nil

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: Not Applicable
Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount
Spent forthe
Financial
Year. (in Rs.)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount] Date of transfer

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year| Not Applicable
2 6) (4) (5) (6) (7) ~(8) (9) (10) (11)

L Not Appiiable P

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the firjancial year: Not
Applicable
_ l2)___ R (3) _ (4) _ l5l_ . () m (8)

Total - -
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(d) Amount spe
(e) Amount spe

(f) Total amoun
(g) Excess amo

Surplus arising

sl.
No

Preceding
Financial
Year

(in

Total

Total amount sp
previous financiglyears, if any

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable
Amaount
transferred to
Unspeat CSR
Account under
section 135 (6)

t in Administrative Overheads: Nil

t on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Nil
nt for set off, if any: Nil
Particular

1

Amount (in Rs.)

gant for the Financial Year

dut of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the

T 1N SU

Amount spent
inthe
reporting
Financial Year
(in Rs.)

Amount transferred to any fund
specified under Schedule VlI as per
section 135(6), ifany

Amount
(inRs)

Amount
remaining tobe
spentin
succeeding
financialyears.
(inRs.)

Name of
theFund

Date of

transfer
Rs.)

(b) Details of

10. In case of creati
created or acqui
(Asset-wise deta

(a) Date of crea
(b) Amount of
(c) Details of thi
registered, t
(d) Provide det
location of t

financial yea

fo

bR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
(s): Not Applicable

Not Applicable

bn or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
d through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable

ion or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
SR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

b entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
neir address etc.

1:!5 of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and

e capital asset).
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11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5): Not Applicable

SD/- BD/-

Nikesh Kumar Sinha Matangi|Gowrishankar

(Managing Director) (Chairperson of C$R Committee)
DIN: 08268336 DIN: 01518137




m PARIKH & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

FORM No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the

Companies (App¢intment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,
The Members,
Ashv Finance Limited (formerly Jain Sons Finlease Limited)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the¢ adherence to good corporate practices by Ashv Finance Limited
(formerly Jain Sons Finlease Limited) (hereinafter called ‘the Company'). Secretarial
Audit was conduded in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate congucts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verffication of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and| other records maintained by the company, to the extent the
information provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorised
representatives dquring the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and
clarifications giveh to us and the representations made by the Management and
considering the reJaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities
and Exchange Bogrd of India warranted due to the spread of the Covid-19 pandemic,
we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year| ended on March 31, 2022 generally complied with the statutory
provisions listed Hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes
and compliance miechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hegreinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records made avagilable to us and maintained by the Company for the financial year
ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of:

(i) The CompInies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securties Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed

thereunder
- 111, 11h floor, Soi-Dwar CHS Lid., SAB TV Lane, Opp. Laxmi Industrial Estate, Off Link Road,
Above Shabari Restauront, Andheri (Wast), Mumbai-400 053
Tel: 26301232/263001233  Email: csi@parikhossociates.com  Wabsite: www.parikhassocictes.com  Firm Unique Code: P1S8SMH009800




(iv)

(v)

Continuqion Sheet

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regylations made
thereunder of Foreign Direct Investment to the extent applicable to the
Company;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to fhe Company
during the audit period)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Ingider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time |to time; (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to gn Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing with
client; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Efquity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Cofnpany during
the audit period) (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback ¢f Securities)
Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(vi) Other laws specifically applicable to the Company namely

(a) Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002;

(b) Credit Information Companies (Regulations) Act, 2005; and
(c) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the directions issued by Reserve Bank
of India thereunder and as applicable to Non-Banking Financial Companies in
so far as submission of various returns/information or other pariculars to be
filed with the Reserve Bank of India.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the fpllowing:

(1)

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretarips of India with
respect to Board and General Meetings.




Continuation Sheet

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with

the SEBI (Listing

During the period
Act, Rules, Regul

Dbligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

E1.|tnder review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the

ions, Guidelines, standards etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Dir

ctors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of

Executive Directars, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were| carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice
and detailed notes
those held at sho
information and ¢
meaningful particig

Decisions at the B

We further report
commensurate wi
compliance with a

We further report t
had bearing on thg
regulations, guidel

as given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance other than
ter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
larifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
pation at the meeting.

pard Meetings were taken unanimously.
that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure

plicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

nat during the audit period the Company had following events which
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,

Ines, standards, etc.

a. The Comp
passing ne
General M
e Approval
 Approval

Employe
e Authoriz
assets o
e Approval
2013.
* Approval
(NCDs) g
Five Hun

y obtained necessary approval from its Directors and Members by
ssary resolutions in the Board and Committee Meetings and

tings held during the year for the following matters:

for Company’s contribution u/s.181 of the Companies Act, 2013;

for the increase in the limit of the ESOP Pool Size of IntelleGrow
Stock Option Plan 2018 (“ESOP Scheme 17);

tion to the Board to mortgage, create charges on all or any of the

the Company u/s 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013

for fixing the borrowing limits u/s. 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act,

| for fixing of limit for issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures

In private placement basis upto INR 500,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees
dred Crore Only);
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e Redemption of Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company orj time to time
basis as under:

o 1,330 Secured, Rated, Redeemable, Non-Convertiblg Debentures

of Rs.1,00,000/- each on a private placement basis, in ¢onsideration

of an aggregating to Rs.13,30,00,000/-

o 4000 Rated, Listed, Transferable, Taxable, Redeemable, Non-
Convertible Debentures of Rs.1,00,000/- each op a private
placement basis, in consideration of an aggregate arhount of Rs.
40,00,00,000/-

o 150 Rated, Unlisted, Taxable, Senior, Redeemable, Secured,
Transferable INR Denominated Non-Convertible Degbentures of
Rs.10,00,000/- each on a private placement basis, in ¢onsideration

of an aggregate amount of Rs. 15,00,00,000/-

« Approval of change in the appointed date in the Scheme of Arrangement for
de-merger between TribeTech Private Limited (Transferor Cgmpany) and
with Ashv Finance Limited (Earlier known as Jain Sons Finldase Limited)
(Transferee Company) from 01-Apr-2021’ to 01-Apr-2022
Allotment of 2500 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Transferable,
Principal Protected Market Linked Non-Convertible Debentures |of face value
of Rs.1,00,000/- each on private placement basis;
Allotment of 2000 Unlisted, Rated, Unsubordinated, Secured, Transferable,
Redeemable, Principal Protected Market Linked Debentures of face value of
Rs.1,00,000/- each on private placement basis;
Allotment of 3000 Rated, Unlisted, Senior, Redeemable, Transferable, Non-
Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs.1,00,000/- each on private
placement basis;
Allotment of 200 Rated, Senior, Secured, Listed, Redeemable, [Transferable
Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs.10,00,000/- eafh on private
placement basis;
Allotment of 1700 Rated, Unlisted, Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Taxable,
Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs.1,00,000/- ea¢h on private
placement basis;
Allotment of 37000 Secured, Rated, Unlisted, Redeemable, Transferable,
Taxable, INR denominated, Non-convertible Debentures of face value of
Rs.10,000/- each on private placement basis;
Allotment of 210 Rated, Unlisted, Senior, Secured, Redeemalple, Taxable,
Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs.10,00,000/- each on private
placement basis

For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretdries

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 05, 2022 igitally signed by MITESH
MITESH DHABLIWALA H:EBII-:)\‘:ZA{I;?DS 12:58:55
Signature: 05'30°
Mitesh Dhabliwal
Partner
FCS No: 8331 CH No: 9511
UDIN:F008331D(Q00276522

PR No.: 1129/2021

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed ag Annexure A
and forms an integral part of this report.




‘Annexure A’

To,

The Members,
Ashv Finance Lim

Our report of ever

1.

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 05, 2(

Maintenand

Continuation Sheet

ted (formerly Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
date is to be read along with this letter.

te of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of

the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial

records bas

ted on our audit.

We have fojlowed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain

reasonable

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial

records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are

reflected in
followed pr

We have n
and Books

Wherever 1-

the Compli

The Compl

regulation
was limit

Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we
bvide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

pt verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records
of Accounts of the Company.

equired, we have obtained the Management representation about
nce of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

ance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination

to the verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
y nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management

the Comp
has condug

22

ted the affairs of the Company.

Signature:

For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Digitally signed by MITESH
DHABLIWALA

Date: 2022.05.05 12:59:14
+05'30"

Mitesh Dhabliwala

Partner

FCS No: 8331 CP No: 9511
UDIN:F008331D000276522

PR No.: 1129/2021
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Related Party Transaction Disclosure as per Section 188 of the Companies Act 2013

FORM AOC- 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of th¢é Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the (ompany with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 3013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil

2.i. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: The following contracts

or arrangements or transactions are at arm’s length basis:

Name of Nature of Nature of Duration of Salient Terms Date of

the Related Relationship  Contracts the i
Contracts

Intellecap Common Cost One year Transaction done for
Advisory Directors/Sh  Sharing form  01- availment of business
Services areholders Agreement  Apr-2021 support services for
Private carrying out its day to
Limited day activities.

TribeTech Common Facility As Transaction was done 10-Mpr- 18-Mar-
Private Directors/Sh ~ Agreement mentioned to provide top up loan 2021

Limited areholders in the ¢ Rs.1,00,00,000/- to
Agreement.

be disbursed in one or
multiple tranches.
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TribeTech Commo Facilit As Transaction was done 09-Feb- 17-Feb-

Private Directorg/Sh ~ Agreement mentioned to provide top up loan 2022 2022
Limited areholdefs in the 4 pe disbursed in one
Agreement.

or multiple tranches.

Note: No advance is payable or paid in respect of any of the above transactions.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SD/- SD/-
Vineet Chandra Rai Nikesh Kumar Sinha
Chairman Managing Director
(DIN: 00606290) (DIN: 08268336)

Place: Mumbai
Date: p5-May-2022
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DEBENTURE TRUSTEE DETAILS

S.NO

NAME OF DEBENTURE

TRUSTEE

ADDRESS

CONTACT DETAILS

Catalyst Trusteeship Ltd.

Office No.604, 6th
Floor, Windsor,
C.S.T. Road, Kalina,
Santacruz (East),
Mumbai - 400098

ComplianceCTL-|

Mumbai@ctltrustee.com

Beacon Trusteeship Ltd

4C&D,
Siddhivinayak
Chambers,

Gandhi Nagar,
Opp. M.L.G. Cricket
Club,

Bandra (East),
Mumbai - 400 051

compliancel@beacontrustee.co.in
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

The global economic environment has drastically altered, with the escalating geopolitical situation
clouding the outlook for both growth and inflation in India and across the world warranting a revision
in forecasts. Lingering war and sanctions, elevated oil and commodity prices, prolonged supply chain
disruptions, accentuated global financial market volatility emanating from monetary policy shifts in
major economies, and renewed waves of COVID-19 across countries pose downside risks to the
growth and upside risks to the inflation outlook

Global Outlook

Owing to the war and the subsequent humanitarian crisis, Global growth is projected to slow from an
estimated 6.1 percent in 2021 to 3.6 percent in 2022 and 2023. Fuel and food prices have increased
rapidly, hitting vulnerable populations in low-income countries hardest.

Beyond 2023, global growth is forecast to decline to about 3.3 percent over the medium term.
Increase in War-induced commodity price and broadening price pressures have led to 2022 inflation
projections of 5.7 percent in advanced economies and 8.7 percent in emerging market and developing
economies.

GROWTH PROJECTIONS BY REGION

Accommodative policies during the acute phase of the COVID-19 crisis mitigated its overall economic
cost by providing ample and cheap liquidity to affected households and firms. But these policies also
led to rapid debt buildup, extending a steady rise in overall leverage encouraged by supportive
financial conditions since the global financial crisis of 2008. The surge in global private debt in 2020—
13 percent of GDP—was widespread, faster than during the global financial crisis and almost as large
as the rise in public debt (Nonfinancial corporations, which entered the pandemic with already-
elevated debt.

(Source: IMF)
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Domestic Outlook

Economic activity which was recovering with the ebbing of the third wave, rapid stride towards
universal vaccination, and supportive fiscal and monetary policies now faces significant headwinds
from the exacerbating geopolitical developments and the accompanying sharp rise in global
commodity prices and weakening global growth outlook.

Table I.3: Projections - Reserve Bank and Professional Forecasters

(Per cent)
202122 202223 20%%
24
Real GDP growth 89@ 7.2 6.3

@Second advance estimates

Table 1.3: Projections - Reserve Bank and Professional Forecasters

(Per cent)
202122 202223 2023
24
Inflation, Q4 (y-o-y) 6.2 5.1 5.5

Economic activity was recovering from the ebbing of the Omicron wave when the fallout of the
Ukraine- Russia conflict has overcast the near-term outlook with heightened uncertainties. Growth
and inflation outcomes are at high risk across the world as well as in India. In the face of this
extraordinary risk, the positive effects expected from the release of pent-up demand, especially for
contact-intensive services, the government’s thrust on infrastructure and capital expenditure,
congenial financial conditions and improving capacity utilisation appear ephemeral.

Updated forecasts indicate that headline inflation, which was expected to ease from current elevated
levels as food inflation gets contained on the back of record production and abundant stocks, is now
subject to a large geopolitical shock. The escalation of war, continued supply chain disruptions, global
financial market volatility emanating from monetary policy normalisation in major advanced
economies and the evolving COVID-19 trajectory pose downside risks to growth and upside risks to
the inflation outlook and could get exacerbated significantly by the intensification of geopolitical
tensions. The concomitant surge in global oil and commodity prices to multi-year highs has increased
risk aversion as reflected in jumps in financial market volatility and these developments could
increasingly shape the economic prospects globally and for India.

(Source: RBI)

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

With >2,100 fintechs operating currently, India is positioned to become one of the largest digital
markets with rapid expansion of mobile and internet. India benefits from a large cross-utilization of
channels to expand reach of financial services. In the Union Budget 2022-23 India announced plans
for a central bank digital currency (CBDC) which will be known as Digital Rupee.

India has a diversified financial sector undergoing rapid expansion, both in terms of strong growth of
existing financial services firms and new entities entering the market. The sector comprises
commercial banks, insurance companies, non-banking financial companies, co-operatives, pension
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funds, mutual funds and other smaller financial entities. The banking regulator has allowed new
entities such as payment banks to be created recently, thereby adding to the type of entities operating
in the sector. However, financial sector in India is predominantly a banking sector with commercial
banks accounting for more than 64% of the total assets held by the financial system.

The Government of India has introduced several reforms to liberalise, regulate and enhance this
industry. The Government and Reserve Bank of India (RBI) have taken various measures to facilitate
easy access to finance for Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs). These measures include
launching Credit Guarantee Fund Scheme for MSMEs, issuing guideline to banks regarding collateral
requirements and setting up a Micro Units Development and Refinance Agency (MUDRA). With a
combined push by Government and private sector, India is undoubtedly one of the world's most
vibrant capital markets.

(Source: IBEF)

Industry Structure and Developments

Unlocks in June’21 have led to a sharp bounce back in credit demand (measured as credit enquiries)
by MSMEs, which was dampened by the 2nd wave after a strong 4th quarter of FY'21.

After the initial drop in commercial credit enquries by 76% due to the 1st wave, they recovered fast
with ECLGS and have since sustained close to pre-COVID levels. March’21 commercial credit enquiries
were 32% over pre-COVID levels; this strong momentum was impacted by 2 nd wave, but June ‘21 has
a sharp recovery back to pre-COVID levels.

MSME credit outstanding has grown by 6.6% YoY in March’21, with Micro segment growing the fastest
at 7.4%.

Strong rebound in credit demand, accompanied by equally strong credit supply and ECLGS support,
has led to growth in the credit outstanding amount of MSME sector to “20.21 lakh crores, with a YoY
growth rate of 6.6%. Micro segment has grown fastest at 7.4%, followed by Small segment at 6.8%
and Medium segment at 5.8%.

The total on-balance sheet commercial lending exposure in India stood at X74.36 lakh crores in
March’21, with YOY growth rate of 0.6%. MSME segment’s credit exposure is 20.21 lakh crores as of
March’21, showing YOY growth rate of 6.6% and this credit growth is observed across all the
subsegments of MSME lending 1
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Very Microl Micro2 Small Mediuml Medium2 Large
Small 10-50 50 <1-10 T10-25 T25-50 >T50

<%10 Lakhs Lakhs- Crores Crores Crores Crores
Lakhs 1 Crores

Overall

Mar'19 _ 5410 | 7268 |
Junl9 | 086 | 214 147 | 738 | 358 | 288 | 5377 | 7209 |
Sep19 | 088 | 220 | 150 | 742 | 358 * 287 | 5327 | mm2 |
Decl9 | 092 | 225 152 7.54 361 286 | 5339 | 7210

Mar'20 | 096 | 231 | 156 | 764 3.65 i 285 | 5493 ‘ 73.88 !
Jun'20 | 094 | 227 152 7.51 365 | 285 | 5506 | 7381

Sep'20 | 093 | 234 159 | 784 | 373 | 291 | 5033 [ 6965 |
Dec'20 097 2.57 1.61 795 | 3.80 294 52.06 71.70 :
Mar'21 102 ! 247 167 715 388 | 300 | 5415 | 7436
;:;L‘ | j..wf, " 69% | 71% | 6_.7% | 6:1.’.' _ l!" sis: I -1.4%—! 0.6% |

In FY 2021, the country disbursed loans worth "9.5 lakh crore to MSME sector, which is higher than
preceding years of '6.8 lakh crore in FY 2020. This sharp jump in MSME lending in 2021 has been
supported by Atmanirbhar Bharat scheme of ECLGS which provided 100% credit guarantee to lenders.

(Source: MSME Pulse Report January 2020 issued by Transunion CIBIL)

Opportunities
India is today one of the most vibrant global economies on the back of robust banking sector.

Retail assets under management (AUM) of non-banking finance companies (NBFC) are expected to
grow 8-10% in the next financial year and 5-7% in FY22, ratings agency ICRA said on Monday. However,
the wholesale AUM of NBFCs is likely to shrink in FY22 and stabilise in FY23. Disruptions caused in the
first quarter of the current financial year are weighing on the overall growth, the rating agency said.
However, the AUM and disbursement trend is likely to remain stable in Q4FY22 owing to the limited
impact of the third wave of the pandemic on the lending business.

“Within the NBFC-retail segment, personal credit, microfinance and gold loans are likely to be the
primary growth drivers as other traditional asset segments — vehicle finance and business credit —are
still facing headwinds because of supply constraints and asset quality concerns,” a release quoted
Manushree Saggar, vice president, financial sector ratings, ICRA, as saying.

NBFCs that have aligned with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)’s November 12 norms on upgradation
of bad loans have reported a rise in their gross bad loans. The reported asset quality indicators have
also been supported by sizeable write-offs. Last month, the central bank had extended the timeline
by six months till September 30 for NBFCs to adhere to the new norms.

According to ICRA, NBFCs and housing finance companies would require Rs 1.8-2.2 trillion of
incremental fresh funding for meeting their growth requirement in the next fiscal. On the borrowing
front, bank loans continue to remain the main funding source, especially for non-deposit-taking
NBFCs.

l\\p
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The net earning of these entities is expected to show improvements over the last fiscal and may
improve to pre-Covid levels in the next financial year. As these entities maintain higher balance sheet,
net margins are supported with favourable cost of funds and increased focus on collections and
system augmentation.

Credit expansion in the services sector was led by NBFCs and trade, which together constitute around
58 per cent of the total services sector credit. Credit growth to the NBFCs moved out of negative
territory in October 2021 and rose sharply to 14.6 per cent in February 2022 from 7.0 per cent a year
ago.

In July 2021, Rajya Sabha approved the Factoring Regulation (Amendment) Bill in 2020, enabling
~9,000 NBFCs to participate in the factoring market. The bill also gives the central bank the authority
to establish guidelines for improved oversight of the USS 6 billion factoring sector.
(Source: IBEF, RBI, ICRA)

BUSINESS REVIEW

The financial year of 2021-22 has been an important year of accomplishments for Ashv, inspite of
business challenges faced in the first quarter due to the second wave of Covid-19. The year was
defining not only in terms of scaling businesses but also in terms of deepening our roots in terms of
depth of our distribution network. The company achieved a milestone disbursement number of 112
crores for the month of Mar 2022, having aggregated a total disbursement number of Rs. 597 crores
in FY 2022. The company has also made certain accomplishments on its liability side, having raised
funds to the tune of Rs. 617 crores in FY 2022. The company has onboarded 5 new banks to its
borrowing profile with the likes of State Bank of India, HDFC Bank, SIDBI and AU Small Finance Banks
having offered their first round of debt in FY 22.

Business Segment

Ashv Finance Limited is engaged in funding the MSME segment with a key focus in lending to the micro
and small businesses in semi urban areas. The company is primarily catering to the under-served micro
& small growing businesses like the local dukandars, small shop-owners, grocery stores, milk shops,
small traders, etc. The company offers differentiated credit after designing product offerings that are
best suited to the target segments. The company’s average ticket size ranges from Rs. 10-12 lakhs and
the average tenor of loan offered is ~ 30 months. The company has a customer base of ~8173 active
clients as on Mar’22 with a network of 32 locations spread across 14 States / UTs as on Mar'22

Growth in AUM & Distribution Network
The company’ AUM has grown from Rs. 514 crores as on Mar 21 to Rs. 728 crores as on Mar 22, growth
in excess of 41% y-0-y. The company has operations spread across 14 states with a physical distribution

network of 32 locations as on Mar 22 vis-a-vis 24 locations as on Mar 21. In FY 2021-22, Ashv has
further penetrated its operations in the 14 states / UTs.

T
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Strong Promoter Group & Marquee Institutional Investors

Ashv Finance Limited is promoted by Aavishkaar Group, which is India’s leading impact investment
platform with an AUM in excess of USD 1.2 Bn and robust businesses across the Financial Value Chain.
The Company has also raised equity from marquee institutional investors like Omidyar Network,
DWM-International and Triodos Investments. These institutional investors have infused repetitive
rounds of equity thereby reflecting investor confidence in the company.

Upgrade in Credit Rating

Ashv’s long term credit rating has been upgraded two notches in the current year. The company is
presently rated BBB+ (Triple B Plus) by Acuite Ratings & Research (as on Nov 2021). Ashv is one of the
few NBFCs in India to receive rating upgrades during the pandemic, thereby confirming the growth
trajectory and performance of the company.

Strongly Capitalized with low gearing

The Company is strongly capitalized with a net worth of Rs. 255.03 crores and CRAR of 28% as on
Mar’22. The company has raised timely capital as when required as per the business requirement. The
company is at comfortable leverage levels of 2.00 times (excluding securitization borrowings) as on
March 2022.

Diversified Debt Source

The company has raised Rs. 617 crores in FY 2022 vis-a-vis Rs. 235 crores in FY 2021. The Borrowing
Profile of the company has further strengthened in FY 2021-22 with diversified funding sources spread
across 38 transactions, 23 lenders / investors. The company has onboarded 15 new lenders out of
which 5 are Banks in FY 2022. Leading Banks like State Bank of India, HDFC Bank, SIDBI & AU Small
Finance Banks are now lenders to the company.

Adequate Provision Coverage Ratio

The company is adequately covered against loan losses, having maintained a Total Loan Loss Provision
Coverage Ratio in excess of 75% as on Mar 2022.

ALM Position

The company has a comfortable ALM position with positive mismatch across all buckets as on Mar
2022

NNPA & GNPA

The company’s Gross NPA and Net NPA as on Mar 22 is 4.55% and 2.04% respectively

1\
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Profit & Loss Extract: N
Total Revenue 128.52 97.85 74.97
Net Interest Income (NII) 61.60 60.18 36.41
Opex 54.56 45.02 27.51
PAT 5.47 7.96 3.77
Balance Sheet:

Networth 255.03 248.89 240.29
Total Debt 513.11 337.88 257.87
Cash & Cash Equivalent 115.63 48.02 105.86
Key Ratios:

CRAR 27.33% 41.00% 60.69%
Leverage (D/E) 2.01 1.37 1.08
Provision Coverage Ratio 75% 138% 123%
Gross NPA 4.55% 3.15% 2.36%
Net NPA 2.04% 1.52% 0.69%

Segment-wise or product-wise performance
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D1-2

Cr 17.07 2.34% 40.11 7.80% 86.81 22.20%
E2-3

Cr 16.55 2.27% 2543 495% 51.17 13.09%
F3-5

CR 3.4 0.47% 19.34 3.76% 60.61 15.50%
G

>Above

5Cr - 0.00% - 0.00% 15.74 4.03%

Total 727.89 100.00% 514.18 100.00% 391.00 100.00%

OUTLOOK

The Government of India has envisioned doubling the Indian economy to USS 5 trillion in five years.
In order to achieve this goal, career opportunities for the young population have been generated and
MSMEs have the potential to serve as a key employment generator. Therefore, the government has
taken up promotion of MSMEs in order to create new jobs in the sector. Further, the government aims
to enhance MSME’s share in exports and its contribution to GDP.

In order to achieve these targets, the government should invest in providing more back-end services
to improve performance of the MSME sector as it supplies goods and services to big industrial
enterprises. Lack of technology-based production activities and low investment in R&D activities are
bottlenecks hindering the sector to become competent. Globally available technology could be
subsidised by the government so that the product quality of MSME players can be improved using the
existing resources. This also requires the help of academic institutions in the form of providing
research and development (R&D) services for product innovation.

The Government of India has designed various policies for the growth of MSMEs in the country.

As of March 2022, the number of loans sanctioned under the Pradhan Mantri MUDRA Yojana (PMMY)
scheme was 48.92 million and the amount disbursed was Rs. 3,02,948.49 crore (US$ 39.90 billion).

In the Union Budget of 2022-23 MSMEs sector was allocated an Emergency Credit Line Guarantee
Scheme (ECLGS) of Rs. 50,000 crore (USS 6.55 billion).

On March 30 2022, the indian government allocated Rs. 6,062.45 crore (USS 808 million) for the
scheme Raising and Accelerating MSME Performance (RAMP). The programme aims to improve
market and credit access, strengthen institutions and governance at the centre and state levels,
improve centre-state connections and partnerships, resolve late payment difficulties, and green
MSMEs.

In November 2021, the Indian government launched the Special Credit Linked Capital Subsidy Scheme
(SCLCSS) for the services sector. This scheme will help enterprises in the services sector meet various
technology requirements.

In November 2021, the Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises launched SAMBHAYV, a
national-level awareness programme to push economic growth by promoting entrepreneurship and
domestic manufacturing.
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In September 2021, Union Minister for MSMEs, Mr. Narayan Rane introduced ‘India Export Initiative’
and ‘IndiaXports 2021 Portal’. This initiative will help exports reach its Rs. 2,928,000 crore (USS 400
billion) target by the end of FY22 and further push it to Rs. 7,320,000 crore (USS$ 1 trillion) by FY27.

In September 2021, Khadi and Village Industries Commission (KVIC) established the first ‘Silk Yarn
Production Centre’ in Odisha to boost the local silk industry and generate employment,

In September 2021, Union Minister for MSMESs, Mr. Narayan Rane inaugurated Rohtak Technology
Centre, which is expected to train >8,400 trainees annually.

In September 2021, Khadi and Village Industries Commission (KVIC) launched SPIN (Strengthening the
Potential of India) scheme and built a pottery cluster under SFURTI Scheme in Varanasi to support
>1,100 individuals of the marginalised potters’ community.

In July 2021, Lok Sabha passed a bill on ‘Factoring Regulation (Amendment)’ to expedite the payments
ecosystem for MSMEs.

Budget allocation for MSMEs in FY22 more than doubled to Rs. 15,700 crore (USS 2.14 billion) vis-a-
vis Rs. 7,572 crore (USS 1.03 billion) in FY21.

The government also announced Rs. 3 lakh crore (USS$ 40.85 billion) collateral-free automatic loans
for businesses.

In Union Budget 2021, the government announced funds worth Rs. 10,000 crore (USS 1.36 billion) for
‘Guarantee Emergency Credit Line’ (GECL) facility to eligible MSME borrowers, giving a major boost to
the sector.

Risks and Concerns

- Risk arising out of interest rate sensitivity

- Geo-political tensions

- All risks associated with pandemic

- Economic instability arising out of the Geo-political tensions

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has an internal control system commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations. The Audit Committee of the Board oversees the internal audit function of the Company,
thus ensuring its objectivity and independence. The internal auditor monitors and evaluates the
efficacy and adequacy of internal control systems and operational risk management, in compliance
with operating systems/accounting procedures and policies of the Company, periodically by
conducting audit of various business departments, processes and functions. The Internal auditor
submits its recommendations to the management to strengthen internal control systems and ensure
corrective actions are initiated. Significant audit observations and follow-up actions thereon are
reported to the Audit Committee
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DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
During the financial year ender review:

Balance sheet and Loans

The Balance sheet size is Rs. 905.73 Crs. as compared to Rs. 610.40 Crs. at the end of FY 21; CAGR of
49%. Asset under management (AUM) of the Company has increased from Rs. 514.18 Crs. to Rs.
727.89 Crs.

Revenue from operations
The increase in revenue from operations was 41% as compared to FY 21 due to the Company’s focus
on granular book with higher ROIs.

Employee benefit expenses
Employee benefit expenses increased by 43% from Rs. 25.59 Crs. in FY 21 to Rs. 36.55 Crs. in FY 22,
due to the addition of new roles to support the growth.

Finance costs
Finance costs stands at Rs. 58 Crs. in FY 22. The Company raised Rs. 617 Crs of funds of during the year
FY 22 to fund its growth.

Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation and amortization expenses increased by 73% from Rs. 1.58 Crs. in FY 21 to Rs. 2.72 Crs.
in FY 22.

Provision for loan assets and additional provision

Loans are provided for/written off, in accordance with Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model. The Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2
and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss
Given Default. The Company follows a ‘three stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit
quality since initial recognition as summarized below:

i) Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date.

i) Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but that does not have objective evidence of impairment.

iii) Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

Other expenses
The operating expenses increased 62% from Rs. 9.46 Crs. in FY 21 to Rs. 15.29 Cr. in FY 22.

Operating profit and Net profit
Operating Profit Margin is at 3.32%. The Company made a net profit of Rs. 5.47 Crs. as compared to
previous year profit of Rs. 7.96 Crs.
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MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING
NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

People, process and culture continued to be focus areas even though 2021-22 was a year of surprises
on various counts. Your Company has built a culture that is the key enabler for progress of our people
and enriches their experience of working with us. We have a well-defined HR structure and processes
that focus on the following aspects:

¢ Employee Health and Safety (EHS);
e Talent Management;

® Goal Setting;

» Employee Engagement;

® Culture.

During the year under review, your company took a number of steps/initiatives for the betterment
and benefits of their employees. Some of them are as below:

e Employee survey was conducted to gage the pulse of the employees and more than 85% of the
employees participated in the survey;

e Two vaccination drives were conducted at Mumbai and Bangalore which was open for employees,
spouse and their parents;

e Super colleague campaign was organized for encouraging the employees to show gratitude to
those around them;

e Various online webinars were conducted for employees well-being w.r.t. Managing Uncertainties
during Pandemic, Celebrating Identity with Pride and Work Life Integration;

e Focused female hiring was encouraged specifically in non-field departments and created gender
neutral job ads and postings.

Our hiring trend across locations in FY-22 is represented in the chart below:
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= Mumbai B Bangalore = Hyderabad & Dedhi = Pune 2 = Ahimedabad o Pune 1
= Chennal o Kolkata o Lucknow ® Rajkot W Surat ®m Aurangabad = Coimbatore
= Guntur kaothapur m Nagpur ® Ahmednagar = Chandigarh m Ludhiana m Nasik
= Vadodara = Vijayawada = indore o Raipur = Visakhapatnam ® lalandhar Deharadun
W jaipur = Vapi B Amarawati W Faridabad W Kopargoan ™ Thane W Tirupur



